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Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)
Strategic report

The directors, In preparing this strateglic report, have complied with s414C(11) of the Companies Act
2006.

This strategic report has been prepared for Nobel Energy Limited (formerly Nobel Oll Services (UK)
Limited) (the "Company”) and its Group as a whole for the year ended 31 December 2021 and therefore
glves greater emphasis to those matters which are significant to the Group when viewed as a whole,
For the purposes of this report the "Group” means the Company and all its subsldlary undertakings as
listed In Note 14.

On 10 March 2022, the Company changed Its name from Nobel Oll Services (UK) Limited to Nobel Energy
Umlted.

Review of the business

The principal activity of the Company during the year was to act as an investment holding company of
the Group.

The Company Is a limited company, which Is Incorporated and domiciled In the United Kingdom.
The address of its registered office Is 10-18 Union Street, London, United Kingdom, SE1 1SZ.

The Company was incorporated on 25 June 2014 as part of the restructuring of the Group and Nobel Ol
Investment (UK) Limited, Nobe! Oll Ltd, Olirock Services Management SA, Global Energy Solutions LLC,
Prokon LLC and Absheron Qazma LLC, The Ultimate Beneficial Owner of these entities held the same
economic Interest in the Company as It held In these entities immediately prior to its Implementation.

The principal activities of the Group consists of providing a wide range of services to the onshore and
offshore oll and gas Industries. The scope of services comprises drilling, engineering and project
management, as well as maintenance, procurement and lease of oilfield equipment and enhanced oll
recovery services within Azerbaljan. See note 14 to the consolidated financlal statements for further
details.

During 2021, net assets of the Group decreased by USD 10.9 million to USD 202.8 million (2020:
decreased by USD 30.2 milllon to USD 213.7 million). At 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents
balance stood at USD 67.6 million (2020: USD 52.7 million) as shown in the consolldated statement of
finandal position on page 15.

Strategy

Management of the Company formulated a vislon, mission and set strategic objectives for the Company
which, following input from the Directors, were approved by the Board.

The strategic objectives of the Group in the near and medium term are to:

(a) Galn revenue growth by diversifying the Group’s service businesses along the oil and gas value
chaln in the upstream and downstream segments;

(b) Gain revenue growth by diversifying the customer base both In Azerbaijan and in target reglons
while at the same time, broadening and deepening services to existing cllents;

(c) Continue to bulld the competency and capabililty of the Group companles; and

(d) Expand services Into the Energy sector utliizing competency and capability of existing Group
companles and through acquisitions.

To achieve the desired level of growth and diversification, the Company Is adopting a dual growth
strategy - efficlently increase revenue, achieve diversification, and bulld capabllity and Inorganic growth
by targeting selective acquisitions and joint ventures.

Bullding the Company's businesses along the value chain of drilling services, operation and maintenance
of oll fleld facilities, engineering and construction management, fabrication and procurement/supply
chain management enhances the synergy across the businesses and creates an opportunity to capture
addiional market share.
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To enhance the implementation of the strategy, the Company continues to strengthen and improve its
foundatlons In such areas as financial reporting In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, budgeting and cost control, business process optimization, corporate governance and human
resources. In the reporting year the Group continued to improve Its business processes In the fields of
the SAP ERP system, job grading, performance management and an anti-bribery program In line with
the UK Bribery Act and the US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA).

In 2021, the Company announced the completion of an extensive rebranding - change of the Company
name to Nobel Energy and renewal of the corporate logo - that refiects company's new corporate vision
and strategy. The new strategy will see Nobel Energy transform from an Oll and Gas Services Company
to an Integrated Energy Production, Development and Services company. The Company will focus on
dellvering agile, efficlent and more importantly, sustainable solutions for customers.

This change follows blg energy companies’ transformation efforts — to become a net zero company and
ensure sustainable development - to address the dual challenge. As part of the transformation, Nobel
Energy will be adapting the strategy and structure to seize opportunities offered by advanced
technology. Nobel Energy wlll seek to partner with technology companies to jointly promote innovation,
drive progress, and provide the needed skills to deliver aglle and sustalnable results for all Its
stakeholders.

The new tagline - Because we care ~ bullds on the Nobel Family’s heritage, which underpins their focus
on people, their safety and well-being, and ensuring sustainabllity through Iinnovative solutions. It
defines Company’s attitude towards both business and environmental sustainabllity.

Business performance and future developments

Overall, 2021 was comparatively successful year for the Group in the challenging market environment.
The main themes of the business performance In the reporting year included:

e Origination and evaluation of multiple business development, acquisition and joInt venture
opportunities consistent with the strategy of the Group.

e  Further de'velopment of the management organization working towards govemance processes that
are consistent with the best practice In the UK, including the establishment of the new operating
model and assoclated business management systems,

e In offshore drilling services decreased utilization of rigs was continued in 2021 as a result of
customers either suspending some of thelr operations or undertaking capital repairs In wells which
has had an Impact on the Group's revenue streams.

e  Our joint venture between SOCAR-AQS LLC subsidiary and KCA Deutag, Turan Drilling and
Engineering Company LLC, benefited from the full year of the procurement and warehousing
management contract with BP in Azerbaljan which started In the middle of 2020.

e In construction projects key activities have included the redevelopment of the Heydar Allyev Oll
Refinery which Is Prokon LLC subsldiary’s largest project to date continuing the development of
Prokon LLC’s project management and construction capabllity. This project which Includes over
1000 people at site maintained operatlons despite the pandemic. In 2021, Prokon LLC successfully
completed fabrication and Installation of five-section flare boom as part of the HAOR modemization
project.

2021 was marked by a slow return to normality in several reglons of the world. The spread, effectiveness
of vaccines and fiscal and monetary support in some advanced economies contributed to a significant
economic recovery during the year. Recent estimates confirm a growth in commodity prices, compared
to 2020, of around 5.9% for 2021. In this context, the energy sector, which had been among the most
impacted by the crisis in 2020, showed signs of recovery In 2021 thanks to an Increased demand for

energy and oll and gas In particular, This rebalancing of market dynamics has led to a significant Increase
in oll and gas prices, which have moved above pre-crisis levels.
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In the forthcoming years, we will continue to optimize the current business whilst protecting our health
& safety and service quality. This wliil allow us to further upgrade our offering while we continue to
develop and communicate our value added technology solutions to target growth. We will also focus on
managing our cash flow and expect to see fewer new investment opportunities that meet our finandal
retumn expectations.

Key performance Indicators

The Board monitors the progress of the Group by reference to the foliowing KPIs:

2021 2020
'otal revenues and other 262,705 277,935} Being turnover as shown In the consolidated statement of
income ($°000) profit or ioss and other comprehensive income
EBITDA margin (%) 24.7 9.2| Rato of EBITDA to total revenues and other Income
Net profit marain {%) 5.6 {10.9) Profit/{loss) for.year after tax Iin relation to total revenues |
Working capital ratio 1.12 1.26 | Ratio of total current assets to total current llabllites
(times) excluding the effect of related party recelvables and
payables
Return on capital 9.5 (5.8) | Profit/(loss) for year after tax in relation to average equity
employed {%) shareholder funds

In 2021, Group revenues decreased by 5.5% to $262.7 million. The reason for decrease Is driven by
lower recognized construction contract revenues caused by (I) delays in some planned drilling works by
customers and (i) additiona! discounts to drilling rates requested by SOCAR.

Higher EBITDA Is melnly driven by projects of SOCAR-AQS where the firm achleved operational
efficiendies. In addition, SOCAR-AQS enjoyed the prolongation of the contract for the high margin rental
activities.

The Group' s net profit for 2021 was $14.8 million which resulted In 5.6% net profit margin as compared
to 2020 negative 10.9% net loss margin, mostly driven by three reasons: (a) reversal of impairment
charges on trade recelvables, (b) cost savings achieved thorough some operational efficlencies and (c)
unrealized foreign exchange galns on financlal liabllities denominated in EUR resulting from depreciation
of EUR during the year.

Duty to promote the succass of the company

In accordance with s172 of the Companies Act, the directors have a statutory duty to promote the
success of the company and In doing so have regard to (amongst others) the following aspects:

a. Long-term planning

Projects typically last between 1 and 3 years, however once early engagement and tendering activitles
are factored in, the time frame can easlly extend to 5 years and beyond. The directors consider the long-
term consequences of decislons on a range of matters inciuding dividend distribution, joint venture
partnerships, innovatlon and development, human resource planning and so forth. For example, prior to
a dividend distribution a detalled analysis and review Is made to ensure sufficient liquidity to support
project cash flows, overhead outgoings and the potential needs of other stakeholders.

b. The interests of employees

The directors view company employees as highly valued assets, essential to the company's ongoing
success, The abllity to attract and retain highly qualified personnel, competent and inspiring management
and support staff capable of managing the growth of the company, is a continued key area of focus and
one which will ensure ongolng sustalnabllity, particularly In these dynamic times. We value each
employee and individual contribution while striving to ensure Nobel Energy is a rewarding place to work.

We encourage employees to seek training and education experiences that expand and enhance thelr
knowledge, skills and abllities while uncovering new and Innovative Ideas. Talent development takes
many forms at Nobel Energy to Include training sessions around critical topics, enroliment in executive
programs, accredited competency programs and Individual mentoring.
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¢. Fostering good business relationships

The company works towards achleving long-lasting relationships and making progressive Improvements
In the value chain.

Relationships with partners begin with an appropriate level of screening. Due diligence actlvities are
performed at the group level, the results of which are reviewed by the directors. If positive, the company
then seeks to ensure that the objectives and accountabilities of the arrangement are clearly defined.

We understand that conditions In the oll and gas markets are changing and evolving rapldly, not only In
relation to technical aspects but also the commercial and contractual aspects and we are supporting
clients In the application of new models and profiles.

The company belleves that It Is In the interests of wider industries as a whole to foster good business
relations In a sustainable and responsible manner.

d. Operational Impacts on the environment and community

We are profoundly aware of our critical role and responsibllity in minimizing our environmental footprint
and protecting the environment. Our environmental management policies are applicable to all rigs,
offices and facilities, and are certified to the International ISO 14001 Standard. Our qualified teams
ensure global compliance, support and guldance to embed the goal of zero environmental releases.

The policies bring together tools designed to ensure all operations are managed In an environmentally
responsible manner that drives continuous improvement. Through the Service Execution Cycle and its
related controls and valldation, we are preventing major splils and driving a culture that Is seif-reporting
with Increased awareness.

a. High standards of business conduct

Integral to our company culture are values centered around high standards of business conduct. The
Group's Code of Ethics, adopted by the company clearly defines our values and codes. This Is avallable
via the following: http://www.nobeloll.com/Ethics-0024-Compliance.aspx

f. Shareholders
The Company Is wholly owngd by one shareholder, for details refer to note 14.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The process of risk acceptance and risk management s addressed through a framework of policles,
procedures and Internal controls. All polides are subject to Board approval and ongoing review by
management. Compllance with regulations, legal and ethical standards Is a high priority for the Group
and the Group finance and accounting department takes on an Important oversight role In this regard.

The Group Is generally exposed to the risks inherent in the global oll and gas markets of pricing and
regulation. The Group’s key principal risks could lead to a significant loss of reputation or could prevent
the business from executing its strategy and creating value for shareholders.

The principal risks and uncertainties currently faced by the Group are the followings:

e  Successful iImplementation of the necessary policies for the business to ensure operational safety,
regulatory compliance and financlal control;

e Occurrence of accidents and incidents Impacting health and safety of lts employees and
the environment in which It operates;

o  Cost overruns due to delays In the construction business;

e Management of relationships with joint venture partners and the successful joint control of joint
operations;

Commadity price volatility Impacting demand for services provided by the Group;
Maintenance of sufficlent equity and debt funding for Investment In new and existing projects; and
Certaln climate change risks may arlse in the future which will be monitored.
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The Group is actively managing these risks through Intemal risk management policies and procedures.
The Group aensures the risks related te health and safaty of its employees and the environmental issues
are managed in accordance with legisiative requirements. Operational safety and ragulatory compliance
are managed through the application of legal and operational expertise and procedures Internally and
from cxternal sources. Risks Bnd uncertainties related to significant investing, financing and
menagement decisions are mitigated through an effective corporste governance structure represented
by exparienced executive management and the high level of competence of the board of directors:

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 21 Pecember 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

James Cowie
Director
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The directors present thelr annuat report on the affalrs of the Group, together with the audited financlal
statements and auditors’ report, for the year ended 31 December 2021.

General information
General Information on the Company and Its Group is provided in the strategic report.
Results

The profit after tax in the amount of USD 14.8 million and net assets in the amount of USD 202.8 million
of the Group are shown In the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 14 and consolidated statement of financlal position on page 15.

The profit after tax in the amount of USD 7.2 milllon and net assets In the amount of USD 259.6 million
of the Company are shown In the company statement of financlal position on page 16.

Existence of branches outside the UK

During the year, the Group held a branch In the Republic of Azerbaijan, as defined in section 1046(3) of
the Companies Act 2006.

Future developments

Detalls of future developments can be found In the Strategic Report on page 2 and form part of this
report by cross-reference.

Events after the balance shest date

Detalls of events after the balance sheet date are presented in the note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In preparation of the financlal statements, the Directors have made an assessment of the Group and the
Company’s abllity to continue as a going concern. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
assets of $7 million, cash balances of $68 million and long term liabilities of $29 million including non-
current debt of $11 miilion. The Group closely monlitors and manages its liquidity risk by producing cash
forecasts to ensure that it has sufficlent funds to meet forecast cash requirements. Sensitivities are run
for different scenarios Including, but not limited to, changes in commodity prices and production rates.

The Group’s going concern assessment covered the period to May 2024. A severe but plausible downside
scenario that Included the commencement of Prokon LLC’s HAOR Package C project after May 2024, the
forecasted vendor payments for Llamrel DMCC and Global Energy Solutions LLC being 5% higher than
Initial ones and delay In last cash inflow of Llamrel DMCC from SOCAR Gas Export Department with totai
effect of $11.6 milllon reductlon In cash balances. Financial position and performance of shareholder’s
other entities under Neqgsol Group were also considered. Additionally, though not reliant on UBO support,
the UBO has provided a signed agreement that amounts owed by the Group to the UBO totalling $51
milllon will not be recailed during the going concern period.

The Directors have no reason to belleve that matertal uncertainty exists that may cast doubt about the
Group and the Company’s abllity to continue as a going concern or its abllity to continue with the current
and planned banking arrangements. On the basls of the above analysis, the Directors consider it
appropriate to adopt the going concem basls of accounting In preparing the Report and the financial
statements.
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Financlal risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activitles expose it to a number of financlal risks including credit risk, cash flow risk and
liquidity risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s princlpal financial assets are bank balances, trade and other debtors, and recelvables from
related parties.

The Group has relatively concentrated credit risk In respect of trade debtors, with exposure spread over
a small number of customers. Credit risk with respect to trade debtors and contract assets is limited due
to the Group dealing malnly with major intemational and state oll companies and active monitoring of
outstanding debtors. In spite of the history of slow payments by the entities of State Oll Company of
Azerbaljan Republic, the credit risk Is low as major recelvables of the Group over 180 days have
subsequently been paid. The Group companies’ terms of sale are governed by contracts with terms and
conditions appropriate for the Industry. The credit risk on liquid funds Is limited because these are mostly
deposited with banks with intemationally assigned good credit-ratings. Credit risk on loans recelvable
from entities under common control Is also limited considering the shareholder’s intention to settle them
against loans provided by other entities under common control In future through offsetting or cash
payments.

The Group’s principal finandial liabilities are loans with banks In respect of which interest Is applied
at a fixed rate and Interest free shareholder loans provided by entities under common control and trade
creditors, which represent suppliers used In the ordinary course of business.

Cash flow risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financlal risks of changes In forelgn currency exchange
rates and interest rates. The Group does not have formal procedures for managing currency risk
however, taking into conslderation the recent tendencles In the economy the management has
performed certain steps to minimise Its currency risks, including forecasting the tendencles of volatility
in the rates of forelgn currencies, especially EUR and USD; analysing operations of the Group with large
customers and suppliers Involved In export-import transactions; renegotlating Its service contracts from
local currency to US Dollars.

Interest bearing assets and lisblilities are held at fixed rate to ensure ¢certainty of cash flows.

Liquidity risk

In order to maintain [iquidity to ensure that sufficlent funds are available for ongoing operations and
future developments, the Group uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance as well
as Interest-free intercompany borrowings.

Further detalls regarding financlal risk management can be found In note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Dividends
The directors declared a dividend of USD 56.8 mililon In the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: USD

15.8 million dividend In specle). The directors declared and the Group pald dividends of USD 18.2 million
after the year ended 31 December 2021.



Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)
Directors’ report

Directors

The directors, who served during the year and up to the date of signing these consolidated financlal
statements, except as noted, were as follows:

Gustaf Tage Nobel

Yusif Jabborov

Imran Ahrhadzada

James Cowle (appointed 2 March.2021)
Richard Manson Duff (appointad 2 March 2021)

Indepondent auditor

‘PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was reappointed as auditors of the Company on 17 August 2022 and will
continue in office in accordance with Sectlon 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006:

A resolution to. reappoint PricevaterhouseCoopers LLP' will 'be proposed at the forthcoming Anrval

General Meeting, ,

James Cowle
Director
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities In respect of the financial
statements

The girectors are responsible for preparing the Annual report. and the financial statements in accordance
vith applicable law and regulatlon

Company ‘Iaw requires the direcvors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Undar that
Jaw the directors hove preparad the group and the company financial statements in accordance with UK-
adopted International accounting standards.

Under company law, directors must not approve the financlal staterments uplass thay are satisfied that
they give a true and falr viaw of the stata of affairs of the group and comprny and of the profit or less
of the group for that period. In preparing the financial statements,; the directors are required to:

» salect suitabla accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained.Inthe financial statements;

o make Judgements. and accounting estimates thet are reasonable and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriste to presuime
that the group and company will continue in business.

'The diractors are responsible for safeguardtng the assets of the group and company and hence for teking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Irregutaritles.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting hacords that are sufficlent to show
and explain the group’s and company’s transactions and disclose with reasopable accuracy at any time
the financiat position of the group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ confirmations ,
In the case of each director In office at the date the directors’ report Is approved:

* so far.as the director Is aware, there Is no relevant audit Information of which the group's and
company’s auditors are unaware; and

+ they have token all the steps. thot they ought to have taken as a director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit Infarmation and to establish that the group’s and:
company's auditors are aware of that information,

Tha financlal stateiments on pages 14 to 19 were approved by the Board of Directors-on 21 December
2022 and signed on its bahalf by:

e

James Cowle
Director
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Nobel
Energy Limited (formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK)
Limited)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Nobel Energy Limited (formerly Nobel Qil Services (UK) Limited)’s group
financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements”):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at
31 December 2021 and of the group’s profit and the group’s and company’s cash flows for the year
then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards;
and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements

(the “Annual Report”), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position

as at 31 December 2021, the Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

the Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity, and the Consolidated and Company
statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the
company'’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a
guarantee as to the group's and the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do

11
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not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form
of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we
are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the
Strategic report and Directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
report and Directors' report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in
respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with laws and regulations related to the Companies Act 2006 and applicable
Tax legislation, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect
on the financial statements.

12
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We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were
related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or profitability.

Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

« Enquiries of management around known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations, claims and litigation, and instances of fraud;

« Understanding management’s controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

¢ Review of board minutes;

+ Challenging management on assumptions and judgements made in their significant accounting
estimates;

+ Identifying and testing journal entries with specific focus on entries containing unusual account
combinations and other fraud risk criteria in response to the risk of management override of
controls.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become
aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events
and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or
through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
FRC’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’
report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a
body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We
do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

(Cws. (Lle

Bruce Collins (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Aberdeen

21 December 2022
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Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Ol Services (UK) Limited)

Consolidated statement of profit or 10ss and other comprehensive income

_For the year ended 31 December 2021

Construction contract revenue
Provislon of services

Sale of goods

Rental Income

Other income

Total revenues and other Income

Construction contract costs

Operating expenses

General and administrative expenses

Cost of goods for resale

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of property and equipment

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

Net Impairment - gain/(loss) on trade recelvables and
contract assets

Impalrment loss on recelvables from  related parties

Share of resuits of joint ventures

Finance cost -

Finance income

Forelgn exchange gain/(loss), net

Loss on business combination

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit
Profit/(loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Equlty holders of tha Group
Non-controlliing Interest

Other comprehensive income

Note(s)

11,12,13
11

15

28
14
7

Items that may be reclassified subssequently to profit or

loss:

Exchange differences on transiation to presentation currency

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Group
Non-controlling interest

All amounts relate to continuing operations.

14

Group Group
2021 2020
$'000 7000
177,108 223,400
39,707 24,522
20,410 23,310
11,133 4,935
14,347 1,768
262,705 272,935
(136,413) (181,421)
(20,937) (16,219)
(44,920) (39,596)
(16,936) (12,623)
(30,522) (33,810)
- (14,957)
95 36
9,787 (2,778)
(2,699) (341)
10,572 9,610
(8,284) (8,079)
106 831
3,540 (9,170)
- {218)
26,094 (31,100)
i411,324) . _ 885
14,770 {30,218y
12,253 {24,485)
2,517_ {5,730)
83 36
14,853 (30,179)
12,372 (24,450)
2,481 (5,729)




Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)

Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2021

Assats

Non-current assats

Property, plant and aquipmont

Long tenm recelvables from relbted parties
Propaid expenses and advonces for property, plant and equipmeny,
Intangible assais ? ' o
Right-of-use assets

Invegtment in joint ventures

Deferred tox assots

Finance leose reccivables

Restricted eash, non-Current

Total non-current assets

Current nssets

Trode ond othar rocolvobies

Contract gssety

Recclvablos from roloted parties
Finance leass recelvables

Inventorics

Currént Income and other tax prapsyments
Advanées given #nd prepold expenses
Restrigted cash, curreng

Cash and bonk bolonces

Total current assets

Total assats

Currant llabllities
Trade and ether payables

‘Current income tax puybble

Taxes other than fncome tox payable
Borrowings

Lease {labllities

Shareholder loans

Yotal currant tiabilities

Non-cunrent linbilities
Borrowings

Lease llobilities

Deferred tox Nabllities
Total non-current llabliities
Total linbilitias

Bauity

Share capltal

Share premium

Translation reserve

Marger reserve

Retsined earnings . )

E£quity sttributabla to aquity tiolders of the Group
Non-controlling Interest

Total equity

Toto! cquity and liabilitics

Group Group

31 Decoember 31 Dgcamber

20212 2020

Hote $'000 $'000
11 113,154 122,813
26 38,522 44,209
4,989 716

12 17,406 32,881
13 6,174 3,567
14 7,086 8,172
10 134 70
17 674 1,115
25 36,659 36,679
224,798 250,222

15 179472 219,553
1§ 36,717 20,512
26 20,000 20,000
17 441 410
18 38,262 41,522
i6 7,294 3,889
33,440 33,810

25 34 4,765
19 67,5490 52,716
379,250 397,177
§04,048 $47,399 .

20 197,892 168,460
) 7,083 4,606
2 58,474 44,161
22 95,939 80,697
13 1,614 1,603
26 S1;114 51,106
. 372,116 350,633

22 11,142 55,978
13 4,369 3,278
L0 13,638 23,863
29,149 83,119

401,265 433,752

23 - -
23 5,240 5,240
{84,379) (64,498)

24 223,406 223,406
13,359 ‘28,823

177,628 180,871

25,157 22,676

202,783 213,647

604,048 647,359

The consolidated financipt statements of the Group (registered numbar: 09102634) on pages 14 to 56 viere approved
by the Boded of Dirsclors and authorised for issue on 21 Decamber 2022 and were signed on ILs behalf by:

Jamos Cowle '
Director /é
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Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) lelted)

Company statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2021

Company Company
33 Dacember 33 December
2021 2020
Note $'000 . $'000
Assats
Non-current assats
Investment (n subsidiaries 14 253,954 249,873
Investment in foint ventures 14 2,076 2,076
Long-term recelvables from related parties 40 » 40
Total non-curvont assets 256,070 251,989
Current sssets
Dividends recolvable 2,200 -
Cash and bank belances 19 1,504 ) 2,763
Total current assets 3,704 2,763
Total assets 259,774 254,732
Current {labliitios
Trade and othar payables 129 -293
Total current ilabliitios 129 29)
Total lisbllities 129 293
£quity sttributable to the ownars of the Company
Share capltal 23, - .
Share promium 2y 5,240 5,240
Merger resoive 24 17,338 223,106
Retained eamings 237,067 25,81) ,
Total equity 259,645 254,459
Total equity and liabilittes 239,774 254,752

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companles Act 2006, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
incomo of the paront company is not presented as part of these consolidated financial statements.

The parent company’s result for the financiel year was 8 profit of $7.2 mlillon (2020: profit of $21.4 inllllon).

The Company (registered number: 09102634) financial statements on pages 14 to 66 were, 8pproved by the Board
of Dircctors and authorised for issuo on 21 Dacember 2022 and werg 6lgned on its behalf by:

James Cowle
Direcror . JUSERE
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Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)

Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Merger reserve

Retained
eamings/
(accumu- Non-
Bhare Share Tranelatio Merger lated controllin Total
Capital Premium nreserve reserve losses) Total g (nterest Equity
Group Notes . 4’000 . . 3000 4000 ., _4'000  4°000.__ -3'000 -- :$°000. .5000 .
Balance at 1 January

2020 - 5,240 (64,574) 223,408 51,349 215421 28,408 243,826
Loss for the year - - - - {24,485)  (24,485) (5,730) (30,215)
Release of transiation

reserve to profit or

loss - - a1 = (41) - - -
Other comprehensive

Income - - as - - 35 1 36
Total comprehensive

Income/(loss) - - 76 - (24,526) (24,450) (5,729) (30,179)
Capital contribution 23 - - - - 15,840 15,840 - 15,840
Distribution of

dividends to

shareholders 23 - - - - -. {15,840) (15,840) L (15,840)
Balance at :

31 December 2020 - 5,240 _ (64,498) 223406 26,823 190,971 22,676 213,647
Prefit for the year - - - - 12,253 12,253 2,517 14,770
Other comprehensive
* Income/(loss) - - 119 - - 119 (36) 83
Total comprehensive

Income - - 119 - 12,283 12,372 2,481 14,853
Capita! contribution 23 . - - - 31,110 31,110 - 31,110
Distribution of

dividends to

shareholders

23 - - - - __{56,827) __ (56,827) - - (56,827)
Balance at
31 Decembaer 2021 - 5,240 (64,379) 223,406 . 1;,35’ 177,626 . 25,157 %
‘Equity attributable to #quity holders of the Comunny -
) Share Share Translation Merger  Retained Total
Capikal  Premium reserve reserve  earnings Equity
Company Notss $'000 $'000 $'000 _ $'000 $°000 s$'000
Balance at 1 Janusry 2020 - 5,240 - 223,406 20,258 248,904
Profit for the year - - - - 21,385 21,395
Total comprehensive Income - - - - 21,395 21,365
Distribution of dividends to shareholders 23 - - - - (15,840) (15,840
Balance at 31 Dacembar 2020 - ;,m . - 223,406 25,813 458
Profit for the year - - - - 7,243 7,243
Total comprehansive Income - - - - 7,243 7,243
Transfer - - - (206,068) 206,068 -
Distribution of dividends to shareholders 23 - _ - - , .. (2,057} (2,057)
Balance at 31 Decomber 2021 - _ _5,-140 - 1?. 330 237,067 259,645

The balance on the reserve relates to the capital reorganisation that took place on 25 June 2014,
which created a new holding company, which Is Incorporated and domicdiled in the United Kingdom.
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Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year

Adjustments for:

Income tax expense

Depreciation and amortization

Loss on Impairment of property and equipment

Net Impalrment (gain)/loss on trade receivables and contract

assets

Impairment loss on recelvables from related parties
Loss on iImpairment of advances given

(Gain)/loss on derecognition of leases

Write-down of Inventories

Finance cost
Finance Income

Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Foreign exchange (galn)/loss, net

Share of results of joint ventures

Loss on business combination

Movement in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other reoelvables/contract

assets

Decrease/(Increase) In restricted cash

Increase In advances given and prepald expenses
Decrease/(Increase) In Inventortes
(Decrease)/increase In trade and other payables
Increase In taxes other than income tax payable
Net cash Inflow/(outflow) from operations

Income tax pald
Interest pald

Net cash generated from/(used In) operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of Intanglble assets
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Investments In subsidiaries (net of cash acquired)
Dividends received from joint ventures

Interest recelved

Loans Issued to related parties, net
Net cash genarated from Investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Repayments of lease llabliities
Repayments of sharehoider ioans
Dlvidends pald to shareholder of the group

Net cash (used In)/generated from financing activities
Neat increase In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of forelgn exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equlvalents at end of year

18

9
11,12,13
11

14

19

Group Group

2021 2020

- _$’000- -~ . . 3$'000.
14,770 (30,215)

11,324 (885)

30,522 33,810

- 14,957

(7,088) 2,778

2,699 341

2,072 214

(1,553) 1,037

855 1,263

B,284 8,079

(1086) (531)

(95) (36)

(3,540) 9,170
(10,572) (9,610)
—— .. 218
47,572 30,590-

61,701 (28,144)

4,751 (40,832)

(1,702) (8,341)

2,405 (3,712)

(6,082) 19,595

- 10,8308 18,119
119,553 (12,725)
(19,136) (11,193)

e {8,662): {7,843),

91,755

at

(8,341) (7,867)

(16) (20)

506 471

- (169)

11,658 9,611

7 . 4.

e 2,994 _+{606),
. 6808 . 1424
89,956 96,074
(115,255) (53,717)
(1,667) (4,425)

- (680)
{56,827},
(83,793) . 37,252
14,770 6,915
52,716 46,307

2 104 ____i(506)
oo = 67,580 . 52716




Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel OIll Services (UK) Limited)

Company statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Dividend Income

Dividend in specie

Impairment of Investment in subsldlaries

Movement in working capital:
(Decrease)/increase In trade and other payables

Net cash usad In operating activities

Investing activities

Investments In subsidlary undertakings 14
Dividends received

Net cash generated from Investing activities

Financing activities
Dividends pald to shareholder of the group

Net cash used In financing activities

Net (decreasa)/Increasae In cash and cash equivatants
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19

19

Company Company
2021 .2020

5000 $'000

7,242 21,395

(95,350) (21,949)

- (15,840)

87,700 -

(408) (16,394)

{163)° 10

. (57) (16,384)
(9,951) (3,141)

- 11,320 . 21,949
—. . 1,368 . __ 18,808
' {2,057). -
. '(2,057) -
(1,259) 2,424

2,763 339

— 1,504 - 2,768




Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oll Services (UK) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1-

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nobel Energy Limited (formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited), its subsidiaries, assoclates and
joint ventures provide services to the oll & gas Industry. The nature of the Group’s operations and
Its principal activitles are set out In note 14 and in the strategic report.

The Company is a private company limited by shares incorporated In England and Wales, United
Kingdom under the Companles Act. The address of the registered office is 10-18 Union Street,
London, SE1 1SZ, United Kingdom.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

In the current year, the following standards and amendments have been adopted.

Interest rate benchmark (IBOR) reform - phase 2 amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (Ilssued on 27 August 2020 and effective for annugal periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021). The Phase 2 amendments address Issues that arise
from the Implementation of the reforms, Including the replacement of one benchmark with an
altemative one. The amendments cover the following areas:

s Accounting for changes in the basls for determining contractual cash flows as a result of IBOR
reform: For Instruments to which the amortised cost measurement applles, the amendments
require entitles, as a practical expedient, to account for a change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of IBOR reform by updating the effective interest rate using the
guldance in paragraph B5.4.5 of IFRS 9. As a result, no Immediate galn or loss Is recognised. This
practical expedient applies only to such a change and only to the extent It Is necessary as a direct
consequence of IBOR reform, and the new basls Is economically equivalent to the previous basls.
Insurers applying the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 are also required to apply the same
practical expedient. IFRS 16 was also amended to require lessees to use a similar practical
expedlent when accounting for lease modifications that change the basls for determining future
lease payments as a result of IBOR reform. End date for Phase 1 relief for non-contractually
specified risk components In hedging relationships: The Phase 2 amendments require an entity to
prospectively cease to apply the Phase 1 reliefs to a non-contractually specified risk component at
the eariler of when changes are made to the non-contractually specified risk component, or when
the hedging relationship is discontinued. No end date was provided in the Phase 1 amendments for
risk components. -

¢ Additional temporary exceptions from applying specific hedge accounting requirements: The
Phase 2 amendments provide some additional temporary rellefs from applying specific IAS 39 and
IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements to hedging relationships directly affected by IBOR reform.

e Additional IFRS 7 disclosures related to IBOR reform: The amendments require disclosure of: (i)
how the entity Is managing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, its progress and the risks
arising from the transition; (il) quantitative information about derivatives and non-derivatives that
have yet to transition, disaggregated by significant Interest rate benchmark; and (lll) a description
of any changes to the risk management strategy as a resuit of IBOR reform.

Effect of IBOR reform. Reform and replacement of various Inter-bank offered rates ('IBORs’) has
become a prority for regulators. Most IBOR rates would stop being published by 31 December
2021, while certain USD LIBOR rates would stop belng published by 30 June 2023.

The amendments listed above did not have any Impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

New and revised IFRSs In issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been Issued but are not
yet effective:

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and Its Assoclate or Joint Venture -
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (lcsued on 11 September 2014 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined by the IASB). These
amendments address an Inconslstency between the requirements In IFRS 10 and those In IAS 28
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Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

In dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and Its assoclate or joint
venture. The main consequence of the amendments s that a full galn or loss Is recognised when a
transaction Involves a business. A partial galn or loss is recognised when a transaction invoives
assets that do not constitute a business, even If these assets are held by a subsidlary. The Group
does not expect a material impact of the amendment on its consolidated financlal statements.

Classification of llablilties as current or non-current = Amendments to IAS 1 (issued on
23 January 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022).
These narrow scope amendments clarify that liabllitles are classified as elther current or non-
current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Llabilities are non-
current If the entity has a substantive right, at the end of the reporting perlod, to defer settiement
for at least twelve months. The guldance no longer requires such a right to be unconditional.
Management’s expectations whether they will subsequently exercise the right to defer settlement
do not affect classification of llabilities. The right to defer only exists if the entity compliies with any
relevant conditions as of the end of the reporting period. A liabllity Is classified as current if a
condition Is breached at or before the reporting date even if a walver of that condition Is obtained
from the lender after the end of the reporting period. Conversely, a loan is classifled as non-current
if a loan covenant Is breached only after the reporting date. In addition, the amendments include
clarifying the classification requirements for debt a company might settle by converting it Into
equity. ‘Settlement’ Is defined as the extinguishment of a liabllity with cash, other resources
embodying economic benefits or an entity’s own equity Instruments. There Is an exception for
convertible instruments that might be converted Into equity, but only for those Instruments where
the converslon option is classified as an equity instrument as a separate component of a compound
financial instrument. The Group does not expect material impact of the amendment on Its
consolidated financlal statements.

Classification of liabllities as current or non-current, deferral of effective date -
Amendments to IAS 1 (issued on 15 July 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023). The amendment to IAS 1 on ciassification of liabllities as current
or non-current was Issued In January 2020 with an original effective date 1 January 2022. However,
in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the effective date was deferred by one year to provide
companles with more time to Implement classification changes resulting from the amended
guldance. The Group does not expect material impact of the amendment on its consolidated
financial statements.

Proceeds before intended use, Onerous contracts ~ cost of fulfilling a contract, Reference
to the Conceptuel Framework = narrow scope amendments to IAS 16, IAS 37 and IFRS
3, and Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 - amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS
16 and IAS 41 (Issued on 14 May 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022). The amendment to 1AS 16 prohibits an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of PPE any proceeds recelved from selling items produced while the entlty Is
preparing the asset for its Intended use. The proceeds from selling such items, together with the
costs of producing them, are now recognised In profit or loss. An entity wlll use IAS 2 to measure
the cost of those items. Cost wlll not Include depreciation of the asset being tested because it Is not
reedy for Its Intended use. The amendment to IAS 16 also clarifies that an entity Is ‘testing whether
the asset is functioning properly’ when It assesses the technical and physical performance of the
asset.

The financlal performance of the asset Is not relevant to this assessment. An asset might therefore
be capable of operating as intended by management and subject to depreciation before It has
achleved the level of operating performance expected by management.

The amendment to IAS 37 clarifies the meaning of ‘costs to fulfii a contract’. The amendment
explalns that the dlrect cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the Iincremental costs of fulfllling that
contract; and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfllling. The amendment also
clarifies that, before a separate provislon for an onerous contract Is established, an entity recognises
any iImpalrment loss that has occurred on assets used in fuifilling the contract, rather than on assets
dedicated to that contract.

IFRS 3 was amended to refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framework for Financlal Reporting, in order
to determine what constitutes an asset or a llabllity In a business combination. Prior to the
amendment, IFRS 3 referred to the 2001 Conceptual Framework for Financlal Reporting. In
additlon, a new exceptlon In IFRS 3 was added for liabilities and contingent liabliities. The exception
specifies that, for some types of liabllitles and contingent liabllities, an entity applying IFRS 3 should
Instead refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, rather than the 2018 Conceptual Framework. Without thls new

21




Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

exception, an entity would have recognised some liabilities In a business combination that it would
not recognise under IAS 37. Therefore, Inmediately after the acquisition, the entity would have
had to derecognise such liabilities and recognise a gain that did not depict an economic gain. It
was also darified that the acquirer should not recognise contingent assets, as defined in IAS 37, at
the acquisition date.

The amendment to IFRS 9 addresses which fees should be Included in the 10% test for
derecognition of finandal liabilities. Costs or fees could be paid to either third parties or the lender.
Under the amendment, costs or fees pald to third parties will not be included In the 10% test.

IFRS 1 allows an exemption Iif a subsidiary adopts IFRS at a later date than Its parent. The
subsidlary can measure its assets and liabilities at the carrying amounts that would be Induded In
its parent’s consolidated financial statements, based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRS, If
no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business
combination In which the parent acquired the subsidlary. IFRS 1 was amended to allow entities
that have taken this IFRS 1 exemption to also measure cumulative translation differences using the
amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRS. The amendment
to IFRS 1 extends the above exemption to cumulative translation differences, in order to reduce
costs for first-time adopters. This amendment will also apply to assoclates and joint ventures that
have taken the same IFRS 1 exemption.

The requirement for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value under
IAS 41 was removed. This amendment is Intended to align with the requirement in the standard to
discount cash flows on a post-tax basls. The Group does not expect material Impact of the
amendment on [ts consolidated financlal statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting policies
(issued on 12 February 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023). IAS 1 was amended to require companles to disclose thelr material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting policies. The amendment provided the
definition of materia! accounting policy Information. The amendment also clarified that accounting
policy Information Is expected to be material If, without It, the users of the financial statements
would be unable to understand other material Informatlon Iin the financlal statements. The
amendment provided illustrative examples of accounting policy information that is likely to be
considered material to the entity’s financial statements. Further, the amendment to IAS 1 clarifled
that immaterial accounting policy information need not be disclosed. However, If it is disclosed, it
should not obscure material accounting policy information. To support this amendment, IFRS
Practice Statement 2, ‘Making Materlality Judgements’ was also amended to provide guldance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The Group does not expect
material Impact of the amendment on its consolldated financlal statements.

Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates (issuaed on 12 February 2021
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023). The amendment to
1AS 8 clarifled how companles should distinguish changes In accounting policies from changes In
accounting estimates. The Group does not expect material Impact of the amendment on Its
consolldated financlal statements,

Deferrad tax related to assets and liabliities arising from a single transaction -
Amendments to IAS 12 (Issued on 7 May 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023). The amendments to IAS 12 specify how to account for deferred tax
on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obllgations. In specified circumstances,
entities are exempt from recognising deferred tax when they recognise assets or llabilities for the
first time. Previously, there had been some uncertainty about whether the exemption applied to
transactions such as leases and decommissloning obligations - transactions for which both an asset
and a liability are recognised. The amendments darify that the exemption does not apply and that
entitles are required to recognise deferred tax on such transactions. The amendments require
companles to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on Inltial recognition, give rise to equal
amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Group does not expect material
impact of the amendment on its consolidated financlal statements.

The Group Is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on [ts finandal statements.

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and Interpretations are not expected to affect
materially the Group’s consolidated finandal statements.
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Noates to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting

On 31 December 2020, IFRS as adopted by the European Unlon at that date was brought Into UK
law and became UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, with future changes being subject
to endorsement by the UK Endorsement Board. The Group transitioned to UK-adopted Intemnational
Accounting Standards In Its consolidated and parent company financlal statements on 1 January
2021. This change constitutes a change In accounting framework. However, there is no impact on
recognition, measurement or disclosure In the period reported as a result of the change In
framework.

The consolldated and parent company financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and with the requirements of the Companles Act
2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards.

The consolldated and parent company financlal statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basls, except where falr value measurement required by law of accounting standards. Historical
cost Is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given In exchange for goods and
services.

The principal accounting policles adopted are set out below.

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with IFRS requires the use of certaln critical
accounting estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policles. The areas Involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolldated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

The consolidated financlal statements are presented In US dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand ($'000), except where otherwise indicated. Forelgn operations are included
in accordance with the policies set out In note 3.

Basis of consolidation

The consolldated financlal statements incorporate the finandlal statements of the Company and
entitles controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control
is achleved when the Company:

e Has the power over the Investee;
e Is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the Investee; and
o Has the abllity to use its power to affects Its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not It controls an investee If facts and circumstances Iindicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that It
has power over the Investee when the voting rights are sufficdlent to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights In an investee are
sufficient to give it power, Including:

e The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the slze and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

e Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e  Any additional facts and circumstances that Indicate that the Company has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decislons need to be made,
Including voting patterns at pravious shareholders’ meetings.
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Consolidation of a subsidlary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries
acqulred or disposed of during the year are included In the consolidated Income statement from
the date the Company gains control untll the date when the Company ceases to control
the subsidlary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive Income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehenslve Income of the subslidiarles
Is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling Interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidlaries to bring
the accounting policles used into line with the Group’s accounting policles.

All Intragroup assets and liabllities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transitions
between the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's interests In subsidiaries that do not result In a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the Group's Interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes In thelr relative Interests In the subsldiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or recelved Is recognised directly In equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised In profit or
loss Is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the falr value of the consideration
recelved and the falr value of any retained Interest and (i)} the previous carrying amount of
the assets (Including goodwill), less liabllities of the subsidlary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognised In other comprehensive income In relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for asif the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subslidiary (l.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specifled/permitted by applicable IFRS). Any retained Interest in the former subsldlary is
remeasured to its falr value at the date when control Is lost, with the change In carrylng amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the Inltial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained Interest as an assoclate, joint venture or financlal asset.

Business Comblinations

Acquisitions of buslinesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business comblination Is measured at fair value, which Is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilitles Incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equlty interests Issued by the Group In
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised In profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the Identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at thelr falr value, except that:

o Deferred tax assets or liabllities are recognised and measured In accordance with
IAS 12 Income Taxes;

e Liablliitles or equity Instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered Into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date;

®  Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale In accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with
that Standard.
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Functional and presentation currency

The Individual financial statements of each group company except for SOCAR-AQS LLC are
presented In the currency of the country In which the subsidiary operates (its functional currency).
The functional currency of SOCAR-AQS LLC is US dollars. For the purpose of the consolidated
financlal statements, the results and finandla! position of each group company are expressed In US
Dollars, which is the functional currency of the.Company, and the presentation currency for
the consolldated financial statements.

For the purpose of making the financlal statements allke or comparable with other finandal
statements of companies In the same industry, the consolidated financlal statements of the Group
have been presented In USD.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and llabliities of
the Group are translated Into US Dollars using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting year. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that year, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, If any, are recognised
In other comprehensive income and accumulated In equity.

Forelign currencles

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companles, transactions In currencles other
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencles) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevalling on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and
llabllities that are denominated in forelgn currencies are retranslated at the rates prevalling at that
date with the difference recognized In the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated In forelgn currencles are
translated at the rates prevalling at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
Items that are measured In terms of historical cost in a forelgn currency are not retranslated.

In preparation of the financial statements, the Directors have made an assessment of the Group
and the Company’s abllity to continue as a going concem. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
net current assets of $7 milllion, cash balances of $68 milllon and long term liabllities of $29 mililon
including non-current debt of $11 milllon. The Group closely monltors and manages Its liquidity risk
by producing cash forecasts to ensure that It has sufficlent funds to meet forecast cash
requirements. Sensitivities are run for different scenarios including, but not limited to, changes In
commodity prices and production rates.

The Group’s going concemn assessment covered the period to May 2024. A severe but plauslible
downslde scenario that Included the commencement of Prokon LLC’s HAOR Package C project after
May 2024, the forecasted vendor payments for Llamrel DMCC and Global Energy Solutions LLC
being 5% higher than Initlal ones and delay in last cash Inflow of Llamrei DMCC from SOCAR Gas
Export Department with total effect of $11.6 mllilon reduction In cash balances. Finandial position
and performance of shareholder’s other entitles under Negqsol Group were also consldered.
Additionally, though not rellant on UBO support, the UBO has provided a signed agreement that
amounts owed by the Group to the UBO totalling $51 milllon wlill not be recalled during the going
concem period.

The Directors have no reason to belleve that material uncertainty exists that may cast doubt about
the Group and the Company’s abllity to continue as a going concern or Its abllity to continue with
the current and planned banking arrangements. On the basis of the above analysls, the Directors
consider It appropriate to adopt the going concemn basls of accounting In preparing the Report and
the financlal statements.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate Is an entity over which the Group has significant Influence. Significant Infiuence Is
the power to particpate In the financial and operating policy decislons of the Investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture Is ajoint amrangement whereby the partles that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control Is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when dedisions
about the relevant actlvities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing contral.

The results and assets and llabllities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated In these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment In an assoclate or 2 joint venture Is Initially recognised In the consolidated statement
of financlal position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the assoclate or joint venture. When the Group's share of
losses of an assoclate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest In that assoclate or joint
venture (which Includes any long-term Interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment In the associate or joint venture), the Group stops recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has Incurred legal or
constructive obllgations or made payments on behalf of the assoclate or joint venture.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the Investment Is tested for impairment In
accordance with IAS 36 Impalment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount higher of value In use and fair value less costs of disposal with its carrying amount. Any
impalrment loss recognised, forms part of the carrying amount of the Investment.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an Investment In an assoclate becomes
an Investment In a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an Investment In
an assoclate. There Is no remeasurement to falr value upon such changes in ownershlp Interests.

When the Group reduces Its ownership interest In an assoclate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the galn or loss that had previously been recognised In other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or llabllities.

When a group entity transacts with an assoclate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the assoclate or joint venture are recognised In the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of Interests In the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue Is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled In
a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group
recognises revenue when It transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

When estimating the date of collection the Group uses most recent historical data available,
adjusted for any recent developments. Each major customer is considered separately based on
the past pattern of payments.

Rendering of services

The Group provides ollfield equipment repair, maintenance and engineering services In the oll
and gas Industries. Such services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time.

Construction contracts

The Group drills oll and gas wells and constructs Industrial plants under iong-term contracts with
customers. Such contracts are entered Into before construction begins. Under the terms of the
contracts, the Group Is contractually restricted from redirecting the properties to another customer
and has an enforceable right to payment for work done Including a reasonable margin. Revenue
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from construction contracts is therefore recognised over time on a cost-to-cost methed, i.e. based
on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated
total contract costs. The directors consider that this input method Is an appropriate measure of the
progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under IFRS 15.

The Group becomes entitied to involce customers for construction contracts based on achleving
a series of performance-related milestones. When a particular milestone is reached the customer s
sent a relevant statement of work signed by a third party assessor and an involice for the related
milestone payment. The Group will previcusly have recognised a contract asset for any work
performed. Any amount previously recognized as a contract asset is reclassifled to trade recelvables
at the point at which it Is Invoiced to the customer. If the milestone payment exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the cost-to-cost method then the Group recognises a contract liability for
the difference. There Is not considered to be a significant financing component in construction
contracts with customers as the period between the recognition of revenue under the cost-to-cost
method and the milestone payment Is always less than one year.

Sale of goods

The Group sells oilfield equipment, spare parts and other inventories directly to customers. For
sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred to the customer,
being at the point the goods are delivered to the customer. Dellvery occurs when the goods have
been shipped to the customer’s specific location. A recelvable is recognised by the Group when the
goods are dellvered to the customer as this represents the polnt In time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time Is required before payment is
due. When the customer prepays full or part of the contract amount, the transaction price recelfved
by the Group is recognised as a contract liability until the goods have been delivered to the
customer.

Rental Income

Rental Income from operating leases Is recognised on a stralght-line basls over the term of
the relevant lease,

Interest income

Interest Income Is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured rellably. Interest Income Is accrued on a time basls,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective Interest rate applicable, which Is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financlal asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on Initial recognition.

Compensation and employee benefit costs

Remuneration to employees In respect of services rendered during the reporting period, including
accruals for unused vacatlon and bonuses and payroll taxes, is recognised as an expense In
the period Iin which It Is Incurred.

In accordance with the requirements of the Republic of Azerbaljan legislation, pension payments
are calculated by an employer as certaln percentages of salary expenses and transferred to
the pension fund of the Republic of Azerbaljan. This expense Is charged to the statement of
comprehensive Income in the period In which the related salarles are earmned. Upon retirement,
all retirement benefit payments are made by the pension fund. The Group does not have any
pension arrangements separate.from the state pension system of the Repubiic of Azerbaljan.
In addition, the Group has no post-retirement benefits or other significant compensated benefits
requinng accrual. The group has no ongolng Interest in the assets or obligations related to the
liabliities of the fund and therefore the pension arrangements have been accounted for as defined
contribution.
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Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported In the Income statement because It excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible In other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liablility for current tax Is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and llabilities In the consoildated financlal statements and the corresponding tax
bases used In the computation of taxable profit, and Is accounted for using the balance sheet
llablity method. Deferred tax llabllities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that It Is probable that taxable
profits wlll be avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabllities are not recognised If the temporary difference arises from the initlal recognition of
goodwlll or from the Initial recognition (other than In a business combination) of other assets and
llabilities In a transaction that affects nelther the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabllitles are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to
control the reversal of the temporery difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
It Is probable that there wlill be sufficlent taxable profits against which to utllise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse In the foreseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wiil be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the period when the ilabllity
Is settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax Is charged or credited In the Income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income,
In which case the deferred tax is also dealt with In other comprehensive income.

The measurement of deferred tax liabliitles and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner In which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of Its assets and llabllitles.

Deferred tax assets and llabilitles are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets agalnst current tax llabllities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and llabilitles on
a net basls.

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to ltems that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, In which case, the current and
deferred tax are aiso recognised In other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination,
the tax effect Is Included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Operating taxes

There are also various other taxes that do not meet the definition of an Income tax under IAS 12,
which are assessed on the Group’s actlvities. These taxes are included as a component of operating
expenses In the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
recognised impalrment loss, If any. Depreclation Is charged on the carrying value of property and
equipment and Is designed to write off assets over thelr useful economic lives.

Depreciation Is calculated on a stralight line basis at the following annual prescribed rates:

Drilling rigs 5%
Machinery and equipment 20%
Computers and office equipment 25%
Motor vehicles and other 20%

Shorter of useful life and
Leasehold improvement the term of the underlying lease

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes In estimate accounted for on a prospective
basls.

An item of property, plant and equipment Is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an asset Is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised In consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the perlod In which property Is derecognised.

Intanglble assets

Intangible assets with finlte useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets Include computer
software licenses and customer contracts. Amortisation Is recognized on a stralght-line basls over
their estimated useful lives, which Is 5 to 10 years. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting perlod, with the effect of any changes In estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basls. The Group does not have intanglble assets with
indefinite useful life as at year end.

Impairment of tangibie and Intangible assets

At the end of each reporting perlod, the Group reviews the carrylng amounts of Its tangible and
Intanglble assets to determine whether there Is any Indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset Is estimated
In order to determine the extent of the Impairment loss (if any). Where It Is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an Individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be Identified, corporate assets are also allocated to Individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be Identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value In-use. In assessing
value In-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset Is estimated to be less than Its carrylng amount,'the carrying
amount of the asset Is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss Is recognised
immediately In profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is Increased to
the revised estimate of Its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
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exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss Is recognised immediately
In profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of olifield Inventories, materials and supplies are measured at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of Inventories Is based on welghted average cost
principal, and Includes expenditure Incurred In acquiring the Inventories, production or conversion
costs and other costs incurred In bringing them to thelr existing location and condition. In the case
of manufactured Inventories and work In progress, cost Includes an appropriate share of production
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value Is the estimated selliing price In the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Prepayments

Prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. A prepayment is classified
as non-current when the goods or services relating to the prepayment are expected to be obtalned
after one year, or when the prepayment relates to an asset which wlll itseif be classified as non-
current upon Initial recognition. Prepayments to acquire assets are transferred to the carrying
amount of the asset once the Group has obtained control of the asset and It Is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group. If there is an indication that
the assets, goods or services relating to a prepayment will not be received, the carrying value of
the prepayment Is written down accordingly and a corresponding impairment loss Is recognised in
profit or loss for the period.

Provisions and contingencles
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group wliil be required to settle the obligation,
and a rellable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provislon Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at each reporting date, taking Into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settie
the present obligation, Its carrylng amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is material) using a pre-tax rate that reflects the current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the recelvable Is recognized as an asset if It Is virtually certain
that reimbursement wili be received and the amount of the recelvable can be measured rellably.

Contingencies

Contingent liabllitfes attributable to specific events are disclosed unless the probability of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits Is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized but are
disclosed when an Inflow of economic benefits Is virtually certain.
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Financlal instruments

Financlal assets and financlal liabllities are recognized when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the Instrument.

Finandal assets and financial liabllities are initlally measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets and financial liabllities (other
than financlal assets and financial liabllitles at falr value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financlal assets or financial liabllities, as appropriate, on Initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or finandal
\iabllities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately In profit or loss.

Financlal assets and llabllitles are offset and the net amount is reported In the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there Is
an Intention to settle on @ net basis or reallse the asset and settle the liabllity simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances, cash in transit, cash deposits with banks with
original maturlties of three months or less and petty cash.

Restricted cash

Restricted balances are excluded from cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Balances restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period are Included In other non-current
assets,

Debt Iinstruments measured at amortised cost; trade and other recelvables, loans issued, and
contract assets are presented in the consolidated statement of financlal position net of the
allowance for ECL.

Effectiva Interest method

The effective Interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating Interest Income over the relevant period. The effective Interest rate Is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts (Including all fees and points pald or recelved
that form an integral part of the effective Interest rate transaction costs and other premlums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on Initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derlvative finandal assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an actlve market. Loans and recelvables including trade and other receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest
Income Is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on Investments in debt
Instruments that are measured at amortised cost. The amount of expected credit losses Is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes In credit risk since Initial recognition of the respective
financial Instrument.
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Major part of the Group’s trade receivables Is concentrated on few counterparties, In particular
on SOCAR, a government owned entity. The Group applles the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade
recelvables, finance lease recelvables and contract assets. To measure the expected credlit losses,
trade receivables has been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due.

For trade recelvables which have objective evidence of Impairment, individual assessments are
performed at customer level. Expected cash-flows incorporate certain discounts to on-balance
amounts and thus are risk welghted. These are discounted by using the effective interest rate of
each financial asset at the reporting date.

For other finandlal Instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
Increase In credit risk since Initial recognition. Howaever, if the credit risk on the finandal instrument
has not Increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial Instrument at an amount equa! to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible defauit events
over the expected life of a financal Instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financlal Instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

(1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financlal instrument has Increased significantly since Initlal
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial Instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a defauit occurring on the financlal Instrument at the date of initlal
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group conslders both quantitative and qualitative
information that Is reasonable and supportable, Induding historical experience and forward-looking
information that Is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking Information considered
Includes the future prospects of the Industries In which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financlal analysts, governmental bodies, and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of varlous external sources of actual and forecast economic information
that relate to the Group’s core operations,

In partiaular, the following Information Is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased slgnificantly since Inltial recognition:

e An actual or expected significant deterloration In the financlal Instrument’s external
(If avallable) or intemal credit rating;

-  Significant deterioration In external market Indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant Increase In the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the falr value of a finandal asset has
been less than Its amortised cost;

e  Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financlal or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease In the debtor’s ability to meet Its debt obligations;

e  An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating resuits of the debtor;
e  Significant increases In credit risk on other financla! instruments of the same debtor;

e  An actual or expected significant adverse change In the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results In a significant decrease In the debtor’s abliity to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk on
a financlal asset has Increased significantly since Initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable Information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financlal Instrument has not
increased significantly since Initlal recognition If the financial instrument Is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financlal Instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

1. The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

The debtor has a strong capacity to meet Its contractual cash flow obligations In the near term,
and

3. Adverse changes In economic and business conditions In the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the abllity of the barrower to fulfll its contractual cash flow obllgations.

The Group considers a flnanclal asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not avallable, the asset has an Internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financlal position and there Is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to ldentify whether there has
been a significant increase In credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criterla
are capable of /dentifying significant Increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(1) Definition of default

If historical experience Indlcates that financlal assets, for which Information developed intemnally or
obtained from extemal sources indicates that the debtor Is unlikely to pay Its creditors, including
the Group, In full, the Group conslders this as an event of default for internal risk management
purposes.

Irrespective of the above analysls, the Group conslders that default has occurred when a financlal
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable Information
to demonstrate that default has occurred using qualitative criteria/events, such as those defined
under (lll) Credit-impailred financial assets.

(ili) Credit-Impaired financial assets

A financlal asset Is credit-Impaired when one or more events that have 'a detrimental Impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that finandial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financlal asset is
credit-impalred Includes observable data about the following events:

(a) Slgnificant financlal difficulty of the Issuer or the borrower;
(b) A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ll) above);

() It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(lv) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses Is a function of the probabliity of default loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss If there Is a default) and the exposure at default The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking informatlon as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss Is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective Interest rate.

If the Group has ‘measured the loss allowance for a finandal instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL In the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified approach
was used.
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The Group recognises an impalrment galn or [oss In profit or loss for all financlal instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to thelr carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financlal assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire; or when it transfers the financlal assets and substantially all the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group nelther transfers nor retains substantially
all the risk and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognizes Its retained interest In the asset and an associated liabllity for amounts It may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financlal asset and also recognizes
a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds recelved.

On derecognition of a financial asset In its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the conslderation receilved and recelvable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognized In other comprehensive income and accumulated In equity Is recognized
in profit or loss.

Financlal llabllities and equity Instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity Instruments issued by a Group entity are dassified as elther financial llabilities or
as equity In accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity Instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual Interest In the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabllitles. Equity Instruments Issued by the Group are recognized
at the proceeds recelved, net of direct Issue costs.

Financial liabllities

Financial liabilities (other than finandlal guarantees}), including trade and other payables are Initially
measured at falr value, net of transaction costs. Financlal llabliities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with Interest expense recognized on
an effective yleld basls.

Derecognition of financial llabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liabliity derecognized and the conslderation pald and payable is recognized In profit or loss.

An exchange between the Group and Its original lenders of debt Instruments with substantially
different terms, as well as substantial modifications of the terms and conditions of existing financlal
liabilities, are accounted for as an extingulshment of the original financial llabllity and the
recognition of a new financial liabllity. The terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, Induding any fees paid net of any fees received and
discounted using the original effective Interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted
present value of the remalning cash flows of the original financial llabllity. If an exchange of debt
instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as an extingulshment, any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees Incurred adjust the
carrying amount of the liabliity and are amortised over the remalning term of the modified liabllity.
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Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract Is, or contains, a lease. That Is, If the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identifled asset for a period of time In exchange
for conslderation.

Group as a lessee

The Group applles a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease llabllities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

()] Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is avallable for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabllitles. The cost of right-of-use assets Includes the amount of lease liabllities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentlves received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stralght-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Useful lives in vears
Machinery and equipment 1-25
Workshop bulldings 15-25
Motor vehicles 2-3

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation Is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impalrment. Refer to the accounting policies
In section Impalirment of tanglble and Intangible assets,

) Leasa liabllities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liablliies measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments Include fixed
payments (Including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease Incentives recelvable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exerclsed by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, If the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(uniess they are Incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

Extenslon and termination options are Included in a number of leases across the Group. These
terms are used to maximise operational flexibliity In terms of managing the assets used In the
Group’s operations. Extenslon options (or period after termination options) are only Included In the
lease term If the lease Is reasonably certaln to be extended (or not terminated). Lease payments
to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also Included In the measurement of
the liabllity.
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Group as a lessor

The Group classifies each lease as an operating lease or a finance lease. A lease Is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. Otherwise a lease Is classified as an operating lease. Foliowing situations that
Individually or in combination would normally lead to a lease being classified as a finance lease are:

o the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;
the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price which Is expected to be sufficiently
lower than fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable that, at the inception of
the lease, It Is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised;

+ the lease term Is for the major part of the economic life of the asset, even If title is not
transferred;

o at the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts
to at least substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset;

o the |eased assets are of a specialised nature such that only the lessee can use them without
major modifications belng made.

Upon lease commencement, the Group shall recognise assets held under a finance lease as a
recelvable at an amount equal to the net Investment In the lease. The Group recognises finance
income over the lease term of a finance lease, based on a pattermn reflecting a constant periodic
rate of retum on the net investment.

The Group recognises operating lease payments as Income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term and this income Is presented as rental income In the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described In note 3, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and llabllities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and assoclated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised In the period In which the estimate Is revised if the revislon
affects only that period or In the period of the revision and future periods If the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgemants in applying the group and parent’s accounting policles

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those Involving estimatlons (which are dealt
with separately below), that the directors have made In the process of applying the Group and
parent’s accounting policles and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in consolidated financlal statements.

Transter of subsidiary

Once the substance of the transaction has been determined to be a distribution, a judgement should
be applied to determine whether this constitutes a retum on capital (dividend income) or a return
of capltal (a reduction or reallocation of the cost of investment), Where the substance of the
transaction is a return of capital is when the company is being fully liquidated and all assets are
being hived up to the parent or return of a particular asset which was contributed previously, If the
substance of the distribution Is judged to be a return of capital to Parent company, rather than a
dividend, Parent would reallocate a portion of the carrying value of its Investment in subsldiary to
a separate investment In distributed entity. One way to achieve this would be to base the
reallocation on the relative values of subslidiary and distributed entity.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to
the carrylng amounts of assets and liabliities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

The Group accounts for revenue from offshore oll-well drilling projects using the percentage of
completion method. Critical to the correct application of this method are the accuracy of estimates
of the financlal outcome at completion, as well as the determination of the extent of progress
towards completion.

In estimating the percentage of completion, the Group compares the proportion of the costs
Incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the project. The totel estimated cost Is based on
historical experience for similar projects, the remaining effort to complete the contact and various
other assumptions.

The Group has two major construction contracts:
HAOR Project

Due to the nature of services being provided by the group, budgeted revenue represents a fixed
consideration and claim-based variable consideration stipulated In the agreement
with the Customer. As a result of evolving economic conditions one of the key assumptions Is the
potential prolongation of the contract beyond the expected completion date. Under such
clrcumstances, If the contract Is further extended until the end of 2022, then an Increase In
budgeted costs by 10% Is expected. Two options of the change in revenue for HAOR project were
analysed for this increase:

Actual as of 31 December 2021:
Stage of completion: 86%
Revenue amount: AZN 105 million (USD 62 miilion)

Scenario 1. Adjustment of costs for project delay claim (50% of 10% budgeted costs Increase
recovered at no mark-up)

Stage of completion: 78%

Revenue amount for 2021: AZN 93 million (USD 58 million) (11% drop against reported revenue
amount)

Scenario 2. Adjustment of costs for project delay claim (70% of 10% budgeted costs Increase
recovered at no mark-up)

Stage of completion: 78%

Revenue amount for 2021: AZN 97 mililon (USD 57 million) (8% drop against reported revenue
amount)

Under both options the HAOR contract Is still overall profitable.
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SONDAJ Project

Actual as of 31 December 2021:
Stage of completion: 81%
Revenue amount: AZN 23 miilion (USD 14 million)

Scenario 1. Adjustment of costs for project delay clalm (50% of 10% the remaining budgeted costs
increase recovered at no mark-up)

Stage of completion;: 74%

Revenue amount for 2021: AZN 17 millton (USD 10 million)

(26% drop against reported revenue amount)

Scenario 2. Adjustment of costs for project delay claim (70% of 10% the remaining budgeted costs
increase recovered at no mark-up)

Stage of completion: 74%

Revenue amount for 2021: AZN 14 million (USD 8 miilion)

(38% drop against reported revenue amount)

Under both options the SONDAJ project is not overall profitable. (Option 1 - USD 0.6 mililion loss,
Option 2 - USD 2.8 mlilion loss.

Financing component: There are no contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.

Profitabliity of the construction contracts

The margins originally estimated by the Group may reduce or Increase due to higher or lower costs,
respectively, Incurred by the Group during contract execution. Generally, when the Group’s policles
and procedures to identify, monitor and manage costs for contract execution do not reflect the
duration and complexity of the contract, or they are no longer accurate following the occurrence of
unforeseeable events, the Group’s results and balance sheet may be Impacted. The Group has an
experience and managerial capacity to perform controlling procedures and functions In order to
track execution of the contract and accurately refiect the duration and complexity of It. As of 31
December 2021 major contracts under which the Group Is operating were assessed as profitable.
Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion Is constantly monitored by
the management at the end of each reporting period and revised, If circumstances change.
Provision for expected credit losses on financial assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate expected credit losses for financlal assets.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit Insurance).

The provision matrix Is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group
will callbrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
Information. For Instance, if forecast economic conditions (l.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year, which can lead to an Increased number of defaults In
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes In the forward-looking estimates are
analyzed. Where applicable, the Group relles on default rates derlved from external rates of
counterparties. The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and expected credit losses Is a significant estimate. The amount of
expected credh losses Is sensitive to changes In circumstances and of forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default In the future,
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A 1% Increase In effective interest rate estimates at 31 December 2021 would result in an Increase
In total expected credit loss allowances of USD 47 thousand (2020: USD 2,188 thousand). A 1%
decrease In effective Interest rate estimates at 31 December 2021 would result In a decrease In
total expected credit loss allowances of USD 47 thousand (2020: USD 2,258 thousand).

A 1% Increase or decrease In credlt loss experience based on which the Incurred loss allowances
were estimated 31 December 2021 wouid result In an increase or decrease In credit loss allowances
of USD 4 thousand (2020: USD 120 thousand).

Leases - Extension option

Extension and termination options are Included In a property lease across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational fiexibllity In terms of managing the assets used In the Group’s
operations.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension optlon, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included In the lease term If the lease Is
reasonably certaln to be extended (or not terminated).

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

o If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Group Is typlcally reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

o If any leasehold Improvements are expected to have a significant remalning value, the Group s
typlcally reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

» Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs
and business disruption required to replace the ieased asset.

The extenslon options in office leases have not been Included In the lease liability, because the
Group could replace the assets without significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term Is reassessed If an option Is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group
becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) It. The assessment of reasonable certalnty Is only
revised If a significant event or a significant change In circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that Is within the control of the lessee. During the current financial year there Is
no revision of lease term to reflect the effect of exercising extension and termination options
occurred,

AUDITORS’' REMUNERATION

The analysis of the auditors’ remuneration Is as follows:

2021 2020
4’000 $'000

Fees payable to the Group auditors for the audit of parent company
and consolldated financial statements 169 132
Audit of the company’s subsidlaries and joint ventures 270 125
Consulting services . 48 153
Yotal 487 __410
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6. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT REVENUE AND COSTS

Services of subcontractors
Staff costs

Materlal expenses

Rent of equipment
Transportation costs

Meal supply costs

Fuel expenses

Repalrs and maintenance
Impairment of Inventories
Other

Total construction contract costs

Revenue from contract with customers
Total revenue from contract with customers

2021 . 2020

$°000 000

54,794 88,155

35,483 32,945

22,915 32,160

6,403 5,952

6,890 10,962

3,275 3,361

2,404 642

1,419 1,535

855 1,263

o - 1,075 - .4,446-
- 136,413 .. . 181,421
2021 . 2020

= -$000 .~ -~ —$3000
237,225 271,232
-~ 237,225 - 271,232

Revenue from contract with customers include construction contract revenue, provision of services
and sale of goods. Revenue from construction contracts comprises the biggest part of total revenue
from contract with customers, which Is generated by SOCAR-AQS LLC In the amount of USD 79.2
millien (2020: USD 156.2 million) and Prokon LLC in the amount of USD 97.9 million (2020: USD
67.2 million). Such revenue generated by SOCAR-AQS LLC Is malnly composed of the offshore well

drilling services rendered to its customers.

7. FINANCE COST

Interest expense on borrowings

Interest expense on lease llabilities

Total interest expense for financial liabllittes not clagsified
as at FVTPL

Total finance cost
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STAFF COSTS

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) during the year by
activity was as follows:

2021 2020
Number Number_
Administration 269 334
Operation . 2341 . 2,009
Total 2,610 2,‘343
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
2021 2020
$7000 _ i$°000
Wages and salaries 47,260 41,248
Soclal security and pension costs . 2{722 . 7,147
Total staff costs ] 54,982 48,395
The remuneration of the key management comprised:
2021 . 2020
: 5" 000 rs-‘ooq
Wages and salaries 1,633 1,136
Soclal security and penslon costs 355 . 235
Total remuneration _ 1,988 - 4,371

The aggregate emoluments of the directors of the Group for the year were as follows:

2021 2020
-$°000 _ £'000
Directors’ emoluments 218 162 ..
Total remuneration - 218 162
The above amounts for remuneration include the following in respect of the highest pald director:
2021 2020
._.vs':ooo _£'000 _
Emoluments 84 . - B2
Total remuneration - _ 84 . 82

The Company, Nobel Energy Limited (formerly Nobe! Oll Services (UK) Limited), as an individual
entity has no employee benefit expenses.

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

2021 2020

i -$'000 ;5000

Current tax expense (21,613) (5,835)

Deferred tax credit on origination and reversal of temporary differences _ 10,289 6,.720_
Income tax (expense)/credit for the year (11,324) 885 -
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10.

The corporation tax rate for the financlal year 2021 was set at 19% by section 2 of Finance Act
2019. Taxatlon for other jurisdictions Is calculated at the rates prevalling mostly in the Azerbaljan
jurisdictions.

The charge for the year can be reconclied to the profit in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehenslve income as follows:

. 2021 2020
: ‘5000 __$'000
Profit/(loss) before tax o e 26,094 ,.g§31{1QQ)_
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2020: 19%) (4,958) 5,909
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 2,114 1,922
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible In determining taxable
profit (7,615) (6,876)
Effect of unrecognized tax assets on carried-forward tax losses (1,032) (381)
Effect of under/(over) provision of current tax in prior years (469) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating In other
jurisdictions (261) 31
Adjustment relating to prior years , ;897‘..‘ e -
Income tax (expense)/credit for the year (11,924) _885 X

Factors affecting current and future tax charges
Legislation was introduced in Finance Act 2021 to Increase the main rate of UK corporation tax on

profits from 15% to 25% from 1 April 2023. This Is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax llabliities and assets recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting year.

__31 December 2021 = .2 31 Decamber 2020 .

Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Dafarred tax

esoet abliity asset abllity
:;s.'ooqﬂ,. - '£'000 . 35’000 - 15000

Trade and other recelvables/contract

asset - (18,913) - (10,573)

Inventories 1,459 - 850 -
Property and equipment - (6,594) - (7,269)
Intanglible assets - (2,936) = (5,925)
Right-of-use assets - (578) = (94)
Advances given and prepald expenses - (15) 448 -
Advances for property and equipment - - - (143)
Other assets - - - (811)
Trade and other payables 12,282 - - (4,144)

Loans and borrowings - (13) 1,489 . -

Lease liablilties 555 - 330 -
Tax loss carry forward _ 1,249 = 2,049 s
Total deferred tax asset/(llabliity) 15,545 29,049 5,166 }(28,959)"
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Movement In temporary differences during the respective years is as follows:

Property plant and equipment
Advances for property and equipment
Intanglble assets

Right-of-use assets

Inventories

Trade and other recelvables/contract assets

Advances given and prepald expenses
Other assets

Trade and other payables

Loans and borrowings

Lease llabllitles

Tax loss carry forward

Net dsferred tax labliity

Reocognlised deferred tax asset
Recognised deferred tax liability

Property plant and equipment

Advances for property and equipment

Intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Inventories

Trade and other recelvables/contract
assets

Advances given and prepald expenses

Other assets

Trade and other payables

Loans and borrowings

Lease llabllitles

Tax loss carry forward

Net deferred tax liabliity

Recognised deferred tax asset
Reoognised deferred tax llabllity

31 December Recognised In 1 January
2021 profit or loss 2021

$°'000 $'000 $°000

(6,594) 675 (7,269)

- 143 (143)

(2,936) 2,989 (5,925)

(578) (484) (94)

1,459 609 850

(18,913) (8,340) (10,573)

(15) (463) 448

- 811 (811)

12,282 16,426 (4,144)

(13) (1,502) 1,489

555 225 330

1,249 (800) 2,049
(13,504) . 10,289 (23,793)

134 70

(13,638) (23,863)

Recognised In

31 December business Recognised in 31 December
2020 combination profitor loss 2019
$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000
(7,269) 2 (4,297) (2,974)
(143) - (906) 763
(5,925) - 2,999 (8,924)
(94) 14 610 (718)
850 - 66 784
(10,573) (1) 17,725 (28,297)
448 - 486 (38)
(811) - (811) -
(4,144) 19 (8,932) 4,769
1,489 - (1,898) 3,387
330 (13) (371) 714
2,049 - 2,049 -
(23,793 21 - 6,720 (30,534)
70 691
(23,863) (31,225)

43




Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery Computers vehicies Leassahold Construct]
Drilling and and office and Improve- onlin
rigs equipment equipment other ments progress Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $000 4’000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 116,025 47,408 2,055 2,006 - 1,243 168,824
Additions - 10,148 607 226 - 229 11,210
Acquired through
business combination - 110 20 - - - 130
Disposals - (324) (69) (166) - - (559)
Transfers - 705 - - - (705) -
Effect of transiation to
presentation currency - (3) = = .- - 3)
At 31 Decomber 2020 116,028 58,041 2,613 2,186 - 767 179,602
Additions 221 1,701 670 276 958 242 4,068
Disposals - (842) (977) (337) - - (2,156)
Transfers - 405 - - - (405) -
Effect of transistion to
presentation currency - (1) (N s - - 8)
At 31 December 2021 116,248 59,304 2,209 2,005 958 604 181,506
Accumulsted
depreciation
At 1 Janusry 2020 (13,995) (13,237) (1,037) (571) - - (26,840)
Charge for the year (7,979) (6,396) (440) (304) - - (15,119)
Impairment losses (14,957) - - - - - (14,957)
Disposals - k2 44 48 - - 126
Effect of trensiation to
presentation currency - 1 - - - - 1
At 31 Decamber 2020 (36,931) (17,598) (1,433) (827) - - (56,789)
Charge for the year (5,943) (8,725) (332) (188) (128) - (13,316)
Impairment losses - - - - - - -
Disposals - 959 763 26 - - 1,748
Bffect of transietion to
presentation currency - - 5 - - - 5
At 31 Decembsr 2021 _(42,874) (23,364) {897} (989) {128) - __{e8.352)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 73,372 35,940 1,302 1,108 830 604 113,154
At 31 Decamber 2020 _ 79,084 __ 40,443 1.180 1,329 - 767 122 813

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 the Group’s drilling rigs are pledged as collateral for
its borrowings with the carrying amount of USD 73.2 milllon and USD 62.3 mililon, respectively.

As 8t 31 December 2021, there was USD 1.5 million prepayment balance for equipment.

In connection with the preparation of the Group's consolidated financlal statements, consistent with
the accounting policles discussed In "Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policles,” property and
equipment are evaluated for impairment whenever there are changes in facts which suggest that
the value of the asset is not recoverable.

When necessary (if any triggering event), the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
tested for Impalrment in accordance with IAS 36 Impalrment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing Its recoverable amount higher of value In use and falr value less costs of disposal with
its carrylng amount. The recoverable amount of all rigs and other equipment has been determined
based on value-In-use calculations using present value of future cash flow projections. As part of
impairment analysis, assumptions and estimates are made regarding future market conditions,
Including rig utlilsation, contract margins, contract awards and discount rates.

In 2020, Impalirment losses represent impalrment charge recognized against the full carrying
amount of one of the rigs. The Group evaluated the existing contract for the operation of the rig
and determined that future use of the rig was under significant doubt. Given this fact, the rig was
considered as subject to full Impairment, No other assumptions and estimates are made.
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer Software
contracts liconses Total
»$°000 4000 $°000

Cost
At 1 January 2020 74,705 5,576 80,281
Additions - 20 20
Acquired through business combination - 3 3
Effect of translation to presentation currency _ — i s _ e
At 31 Decamber 2020 74,705 5,599 80,304
Additions - 16 16
Effect of translation to presentation currency - - c e z
At 31 December 2021 74,708, . 5615 _ 80,320
Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2020 (29,882) (2,055) (31,937)
Charge for the year (14,941) (545) (15,486)
Effect of translation to presentation currency e Z. , L =,
At 31 December 2020 (44,823) (2,600) (47,423)
Charge for the year (14,941) (550) (15,491)
Effect of translation to presentation currency . ‘ = - - -
At 31 December 2021 (59,764). .. . . (3,150) (62,914)
Carrying amount .
At 31 December 2021 » 14941, == 2,465 _ 17,408
At 31 Decamber 2020 20882 . 2999 _ _32,881.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of customer contracts Intangible assets of the Group
acquired through acquisition of SOCAR-AQS LLC is estimated to be USD 14.9 mlllion (2020: USD
29.9 mlllion). The customer contracts recognized by the Group are related to the contracts and
historical refations with State Oll Company of Azerbaijan Republic (SOCAR). The useful life of the
customer contracts s estimated to be 5years (2020: 5 years).

The Group tests customer contracts for impalrment If there is an impairment Indicator. In case of
an Impairment Indicator, customer contracts are allocated, at acquisition, to relevant CGUs. The
recoverable amount Is compared to the carrying value to identify any Impalrment. The recoverable
amount of the CGU Is determined from the discounted cash flow calculations. The Group prepared
updated financial forecasts In 2021, Induding cash flows for the remalning useful life of the
customer contracts which Is two years.

The Group’s other Intanglble assets are computer software licenses with a useful life of 10 years.

In April 2016, the Group implemented a8 new SAP ERP system, which constitutes a significant part
of the Intanglble assets balance.
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13.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of machinery, workshop bulldings, offices, vehicles
and other equipment used In Its operations. The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured
by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Group &lso has certain leases of machinery and vehicles with lease terms of 12 months or less.
The Group applles the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements
during the year:

Workshop Machinery
and office and
bulidings Vehicles equipment Other Total
= ___i$'000 $000. - :$'000.. .. $'000 /$°000 .
At 1 January 2020 2,001 645 4,224 556 7,816
. Additions 1,012 224 - - 1,236
Acqulired through business
combination 9 45 - - 54
Modifications 1,188 - (73) - 1,115
Disposals i (114) (564) (2,008) (463) (3,149)
Depreciation expense (1,250) (103) 7 (-:-1;,7‘759)':_‘ — {93) (3,205)
At 31 Dacember 2020 _ 2936 247 .. .. 364 - e 3,567
Additions 3,205 . 43 - 3,338
Modifications 1,146 37 e - 1,183
Disposals (199) - e - . (199).
Depreciation expense [1,447) (61) {207) . . {1,715) ¢
At 31 December 2021 5731 . .. 223 -_-. 220 - .. - 6174

14,

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabllities and the movements during the year:

2021 2020
— _;.:s'qoo__ _ ;:_s:.ooo
Baiance at 1 January 4,881 9,010
Addltions 2,974 2,285
Mcdifications {205) (1,989)
Accretion of interest 733 820
Payments (2,400) (5,245)
Balance at 31 December ' 59883 - 4881
Current 1,614 1,603
Non-current 4,369 3,278
INVESTMENTS

The group conslsts of a parent company, Nobel Energy Limited (formerly Nobel Oll Services (UK)
Umited), incorporated In the UK and a number of subs!diaries and joint ventures held directly and
Indirectly by Nobel Energy Limited, which operate and are Incorporated around the world.

(a) Subsidiaries

The Group had the following subsldlaries at 31 December 2021:
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Proportion

Proportion

of ordinary  of ordinary

shares

directly held directly held

by by
Principal Place of Incorporation and the parent the group
Name _activity registered office (%) (%)
Nobel Oll Investment Holding 10-18 Unton Street, London, SE1 152,
{UK) Limited company _ United Kintdom 100 100
) Holding Henville Bullding, Prince Charles Street,
NobelOll Ltd compsny  Charlestown, Nevis 100 100
Holding 14 S.A. Shirvan| street, apt. 102, Baku,
Absheron Qazma LLC company _ the Republic of Azerbaijan 75 100
Nobe! Energy Manage- Khatal District, 113 *8 Noyabr” Avenue, 90 100
Management LLC ment Baku, AZ1026, the Republic of Azerbaljan
comgany
N-Oil Management Manage- Nasimi District, 158 Ak. Shamil Azizbayov - 5
asc ment street, apt. 25, Baku, AZ1010, the
company _Republic of Azerbaljan '
*  Saball District, 89 Neftchilar Avenue, apt.
B 35, Baku, AZ1004, the Republlc of
Prokon LLC i Azerbalian 95 100
N Nizam| District, 10Q A. Qalbov street,
Prokon Trading LLC {{11)] Baku, AZ1029, the Republic of Azerbalfan - 100
Prokon Construction 19 Mir Avenue, Apt.6B, Office 91,
and Englneering LLC (y Moscow, Russla - 100
Prokon Makina inghaat ;
tmalat Montaj Sanayl
ve Ticaret Limited Sogutozu mah., Sogutozu cad., B-Block,
-Shirket n Apt. no.2 B/S, Cankaya, Ankara, Turksy - 100
T Oral city, 35 Dosmukhamedova street, '
JerMal LLP Dormant 090000, the Republic of Kazakhstan - 100
Blnagad) District, 1B Rashid Behbudov
Global Energy . street, apt. 4, Baku, AZ1114,
Solutions LLC (). the Repubiic of Azerbalian 90 100
Mengystau Reglon, Industrial zone 4, .
house 88, Munaylinski District, 130006,
Glensol LLC (V) the Republic of Kazakhstan - 100
Vake District, P. Kavtaradze street, '
Glensol Georia LLC Ly N48D, Thbllisl, Georéla - 100
) Unit No.30-01-1048, Jewellery &
Gemplex 3, Plot No.DMCC-PH2-J&GPlexS,
Dubal,
Uamret DMCC (M) United Arab Emirates . 100 100
C Khatal District, 21 Fazll Bayramov street,
GVLUC , (iv) ___Baku, AZ1025, the Renublic of Azerbai)an 49 100
) Saball District, 96 Nizam! street,
4 Landmark Office Plaza I, Baku, AZ1010,
SOCAR-AQS LIC {v)___ the Republic of Azerbaljan 73.77 86.62
Unit No.2723, DMCC Business Centre,
SOCAR-AQS Level No 1, Jewellery & Gemplex 3,
International DMCC {v)  Dubal, United Arab Emirates - 100
SOCAR-AQS SONDAJ )
Muhendls&l?Sanayl ve Beshtepe mah., Nerglz sk. n0.7/2/74,
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi (v) Yenimahalle, Ankara, Turkey - 100
' Narimanov District, 3/10 A. Rajablil
. street, Baku, AZ1075, the Republic of
Ozuz Drilling LLC {vl) Azerballan 9.5 100

() Construction and project management services
() Olifield equipment maintenance services

() Olifield equipment and spare parts trading

(lv) Repair and maintenance services to mechanical equipment In the oll and gas Industry
(v) Integrated drilling and well management services
(vl) Operations, maintenance and engineering services
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All subsidiary undertakings are included In the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights In
the subsidiary undertakings held directly by the parent company do not differ from the proportion
of ordinary shares held.

N-Oll Management CISC ("N-OIlI") Is 5% owned by the Group with the remaining 95% held by the
ultimate shareholder of the Group. Based on the agreement with the ultimate shareholder,
management over the entire activity of N-Oll (operational and financial dedslons, day to day
management, organizational issues and other authorities) rests with the Group effective from the
date of establishment of N-OIl.

Nobel Oil Investment (UK) Limited (registered number: 9082333) is exempt from the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of financlal statements under s479A through
the guarantee glven by Nobel Energy Limited (formerly Nobel Oll Services (UK) Limited) under
s479C.

(b) Investment In subsidiaries

2021 2020
Company - 8000 _ $7000
Balance at 1 January ' 249,873 247,173
Transfer 81,830
Impairment (87,700) -
Additions In the year ) 9,951 _2;700
At 31 December — 253,954 - 249,873 .

In January 2021, the Group's ownership interest in SOCAR-AQS LLC subsidiary was transferred
from Nobel Oll Ltd to the Company for nll consideration. The Company recorded this transfer at
$81,830 thousand. In addition, The Company transferred $228,302 thousand amount from
investment In Nobel Oll Ltd to Investment in SOCAR-AQS LLC.

During 2021, the Company recognised impalrment of $87,700 thousand over Investment In SOCAR-
AQS LLC.

During 2021, the Company has made additional contributions In the share capital of Its subs!dlaries,
Nobel Qil Ltd, Nobel Energy Management LLC and Nobel Oll Investment (UK) Limited In the amount
of $8,440 thousand, $1,350 thousand and $161 thousand, respectively.

During 2020, the Company has made additional contributions In the share capltal of Its subsidlaries,
Nobel OIll Ltd and Global Energy Solutions LLC in the amount of $2,200 thousand and $500
thousand, respectively.

Investments in group undertakings are recorded at cost, which Is the falr value of the consideration
paid.

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Nasib Hasanov by virtue of his 100% ownership of
the capital of Nobel Energy Limited (formerly Nobel Oll Services (UK) Limited).

Summarised financial information In respect of each of the Group’s subsidlaries that has material
non-controlling Interests is set cut below. The summarised financial Information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

31 December 31 Decamber

2021 2020
e ____.%000 _ . <8000

SOCAR-AQS LLC
Current assets 169,871 278,670
Non-current assets 140,095 109,946
Current llabliities 201,160 296,650
Non-current llabilitles 8,252 9,954
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2021 2020
SOCAR-AQS LIC = 18'000. _ - S'ooo
Revenue 97,845 161,865
Profit/(loss) for the year 18,809 (42,825)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Income for the year (267) 9
Net cash Inflow from operating actlvities 30,879 287
Net cash inflow from Investing activitles 8,889 1,501
Net cash (outflow)/ inflow from financing activities (24,452) 20,493
Net cash Inflow 15,316 22,281

(c) Investment In joint ventures

The Group had the following joint ventures at 31 December 2021:

Proportion  proportion
of ordinary  of ordinary

shares shares
directly directly
Place of Incorporation and held by the held by the
Name Principal activity registered office parent (%) _Group (%)
Fabrication works for 8th Floor The Aspect, 12 Finsbury
the oll and gas Square, London, EC2A 1AS, United
SDL Denholm Ltd Industry' Klnndom 50 50
Denholm Olifield  Fabrication works for - =TT = =
Services the oll and gas 19 Woodslde Creseent, Glasgow,
a( Ijan) u:d Industry G3 7UL;; United Kinodom 50 50
’ " Olifield engineering, - C/O Centralls Netherands BV, S .
WOod Group procurement and Zuldpleln 126, WTC, Toren H 15e,
Azerbaljan B.V. construction services Amsterdam, '1077XV, .Netherlands 49 49
Turan Drilling and Ollfield procurement ISR Plaza, 14th floor, 69 Nizam| = T e T 51
Engineering and wherehouse street, Baku, AZ1000, the Republic
Compsany LLC management services of Azerbsljan : :
e " Masazir District, 6 *Bakhchall ) 50 50
Evlar” epartment complex, apt.15,
Absheron reglon, the Republic of
tamor NBO LLC  Dormant Azerbaljan

The table below summarizes movements In the carrying amount of the Group’s investment In joint
ventures:

2021 2020
Group __$'000 14000
Carrying amount at 1 January 8,172 8,407
Additions to Investments In joint ventures - -
Share of results of joint ventures 10,572 9,610
Dividends recelved from joint ventures (11,658) (9,611)
Derecognition of joint ventures i = {234).
At 31 December 2,086 8,172

2021 2020
Company .$'000 :$'000 .
Balance at cost at 1 January 2,076 1,635
Additions In the year - - 41 .
At 31 December 2 076 3,078

In January 2020, the Company purchased 49% of the GVL LLC's share capltal for a cash
consideration of $441 thousand and the Group obtalned control of GVL LLC. Before obtaining
control, one of the Group subsidiaries, Global Energy Solutions LLC owned the 51% of the shares
in GVL LLC.
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(d) Details of joint ventures

At 31 December 2021, the Group Interests in joint ventures and thelr summarized aggregate
financlal information, including total assets, liabilitles, revenues and profit or loss, were as follows:

Total Total Total
Total non- Total non- compreh Inte- Share
current curmment current current Net Profit/ enslve rest of Country of
assets ossots llabllities llabllities assets Revenue (loss) Income held profit Incorporat
Name . $000_. 3°000- :4'000. 5000 4000 -3'000. 4’000 _ .$°000 -_ (%) (%) - lon-
United
SDL Denholm Ltd 3,240 768 1,442 75 2,481 8,073 1,093 1,093 50 50 Kingdom
Denholm Ofifield _
Services : United
(Azerbaljan) Lid - 427 - 76 - 351 1,304 27 27 50 50 Kingdom
Wood Group
Azerbaljan B.V. 14,477 447 13,858 . 1,065 39,487 429 429 49 49 Netherlands
Turan Drilling and "
Englneering
Company LLC 33,892 6,738 23,905 2,314 14,411 133,294 24,065 24,065 51 40 Azerbaljan
Lamor NBO LLC - = o - - = - S 50 50 Azerbatjan
Total .= 52,036 7,053 39,282 2,389 18,318 182,158 25,614 25,614

At 31 December 2020, the Group Interests in joint ventures and thelr summarized aggregate
financial information, Including total assets, labllities, revenues and profit or loss, were as follows:

Total Total Total
Total non- Total non- comprah Inte- Share
current current current current Net Profit/ ensive rest of Country of
assets assets finbliitles Ilabliities asssts Revanue (loss) Income held profit Incorporat
Nama 47000 _ $'000 __ $'000 35’00 4'000 4000 __7$'000 _(%) (%) ton
United
SDL Denholm Ltd 4,809 1,495 3,618 591 2,095 11,087 937 937 50 50 Kingdom
Denhoim Olifield
Services United
(Azerbaljan) Ltd 563 - 138 - 425 900 25 25 50 50 Kingdom
Wood Group
Azerbaifan B.V. 16,894 621 14,273 328 2,914 47,152 2,804 2,804 49 49 Netherlands
Turan Drilling and
Engineering
Company LLC 35430 6,108 25,377 7,856 8,265 110,274 25,836 25,836 51 30 Azerbaljan
lamorNBOLLC - o .= ~——-ir o ooeim - - - - te - . 50 50 Azerbaljan
Total 57,696 8224 43,408 8518 13,690 169,413 20,602 29,602
15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
31 Decamber 31 Deceamber
2021 2020
e $/000 5000 ,
Trade receivables 130,511 219,309
Less: loss allowance 4,654 . 411,971},
Trade recelvables, net 125,857 207,338
Contract assets (net of loss allowance) 36,717 20,512
Other recelvables 49,615, 12,215..
Total trade and other recelvables 213,189 240,065
Current 212,189 240,065
Non-current — - _ 7 -
Total trade and other receivables e 212,189 _-—-240,065.
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Movement in the allowance for ECL/Incurred loss allowance that has been recognized for trade

recelvables:
2021 2020
. ~1$'m)0 L g'onq__
Balance at 1 January (11,971) (10,129)
Charge for the year (99) (2,685)
Amounts recovered 7,343 B43
Amounts written-off 73 R -
At 31 December (4,654) _ _ (11,871)

Loss allowance on contract assets is Insignificant as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over any of Its trade
receivables nor does It have a legal right of offset agalnst any amounts owed by the Group to
the counterparty.

The Company appiies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses a [ifetime expected loss allowance for all trade recelvables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade recelvables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 month before
31 December 2021 or 31 December 2020 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period.

Trade recelvables disclosed above include amounts (see below for aging analysls) which are past
due at the reporting date and against which the Group has recognized expected credit losses using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experlence and adjusted for factor
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and credit ratings.

31 Decamber 31 December

2021 2020

__s000. _ .s‘e00.
Current and not Impalred 42,837 82,488
Age of recelvables that are past due:
1-30 days 15,693 12,869
31-90 days 9,756 8,872
91-180 days 15,801 21,752
181-360 days 22,675 40,137
Over 360 days i 23,749. .. 53,191
Total trade receivables 130,511 219,309
Less: loss aliowance (4,654) {(11,971)
Trade recelvables, net _ 125,857 _ 20'7,'338‘_

The Group carrles out an on-going assessment of the collectabliity of its trade and other
recelvables. Trade and other recelvables balances are assessed for Impalrment Individually

and collectively at the end of each reporting date. In determining the recoverabllity of a trade
recelvables, the Group conslders use of a provision matrix, based on historical data of recelvables

Impairment and credit ratings of customers, as a practical expedlent for measuring ECL.. The Group

calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking Information.

The historical observed default rates are revised and updated at the end of each finandal year.

S1




Nobel Energy Limited (Formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

16.

17.

Contract asset and llabllitles at the reporting date:
31 December 31 December

.2021 .2020
5’000 5’000
Contracts /n progress at the end of the reporting year - ' ) T
Construction costs Incurred plus recognised profits less recognised
losses to date 37,135 20,774
Less: loss allowance s (418, . {262)
36717 20,512

Recognised and Included In the financlal statements as:
- contract assets 36,717 20,512

Contract assets are Initlally recognised for revenue eamed from drilling services as recelpt of
consideration Is conditional on successful completion of drilling. Upon completion of driliing services
and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassifled to
trade receivables.

Movement In the allowance for expected credit losses that has been recognized for contract assets:

, 2021 2020
__-8'000 . .. $"009 ‘,

Balance at 1 January (262) (385)
Charge for the year (418) (262)
Amounts recovered . — 262 - - ..., 385
At 31 Decamber N “’L’l .’;262"

CURRENT INCOME AND OTHER TAX PREPAYMENTS

31 Decamber 31 December

2021 2020

$'000- - ...-$'000
VAT prepayment e 7,294 — 3,889 .
Total current Income and other tax prepayments - 7,204 __3,889
FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
The maturity analysis of the finance lease payments receivable Is as follows:

2021 2020

$'000 .. _:$7000
Year 1 510 510
Year 2 530 510
Year 3 180 530
Year 4 - — ST 180
Total undiscounted finance lease payments recelvable at 31 December _ _ 1;;20: . L 1.,.?30': ]
Uneamed finance Income .. «{108) . . (208)
Finance lease recalvables at 31 Decamber o 3,115 1,525 .
Current 441 " 410
Non-current 674 1,115

Finance Income on the net Investment In the lease was USD 100 thousand (2020: 525 thousand).
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18.

l’l

INVENTORIES

Driliing inventary

Mechanical Inventory

Safety Inventory
Goods for resale
Electrical Inventory
Other

Less: provision for slow moving Inventories

Total inventories

31 December 31 Dacember
. 2021 2020

- — 5'000- .-. __$'000.
20,993 22,674
18,032 18,912

1,343 1,869

946 201

422 456

1,353 1,381

.. (4827 i(3,971)
38,262 41,522

The cost of Inventories recognized as an expense during the year was USD 22.9 million (2020: USD

32.3 million).

Movement In the provision for slow moving inventories were as follows:

Balance at 1 January

Charge for the year
At 31 December

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances
Call deposits
Cash on hand

Total cash and bank balances

2021 2020

'$'000 :5'000..

(3,971) .(2,708)

e (856 11,263}
; ‘(_(A‘ezi): (3,971)
31 Detember 31 Decamber
2021 /2020

$'000 , $000 .

64,729 51,459

2,855 1,255

— 6 2:"
oo — 67,590 62716

At 31 December 2021, call deposits represent two (2020: one) USD denominated call deposits ln‘
the amount of USD 2.9 million {2020: USD 1.3 million) placed with the interest rate of 0.1% p.a.

(2020: 0.15% p.a.)

The Company had a bank balance of USD 1,504 thousand (2020: USD 2,763 thousand).
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Contract |labliities

Payables to employees

Accrued expenses and other creditors

Total trade and other payables

Current
Non-current

Totul trade and other payables

31 Decamber 31 December
.,2021 2020
157000, $'000
113,072 136,639

41,227 27,014

580 2,212

cems —-23,013. . . - 2,595.

357,892 168,460

157,892 168,460
157,892 168,460

Contract liabilitles mainly represent amounts paid In advance by customers for the purchases of
olifield materials and supplles the procurement of which takes longer periods of time. Contract
liabliitles have Increased by USD 14,213 thousand in 2021 mainly due to the negotlation of iarger
prepayments and an increase In overall contract activity.

21. TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX PAYABLE
31 Decamber 31 December
2021 2020
. _$'000 $'000
Provisions for potential tax disputes 49,284 38,806
VAT payable 8,393 4,824
Other taxes payable _..197 : 531
Total taxes other than Income tax payable = 58,474 44,161
22. BORROWINGS
31 Decamber 31 December
2021 2020
L 800 -4'000
Bank loans 101,069 127,511
Other borrowings 5,711 8,478
Accrued Interest payabie S - - 301 .___686
Amount due for settiement within 12 months 95,939 80,697
Amount due for settiement after 12 months = 117142 55,978
Yotal borrowings 107,081 .. 136675
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1I,\atdii"%'&lzgt:ember 2021 and 2020, borrowings of the Group were represented by the following

31 Decamber 31 Decamber
Interest 2021 2020
" rate . Rate ___i$'000.. . Rate - _..--—:$'000
EUR denominated
Xalq Bank Fixed 4% 27,550 4% 31,814
Landesbank Baden- EURIBOR+ EURIBOR+
Wirttemberg Variable 0.8% 6,502 0.8% 12,278
Black Sea Trade and
Development Bank Fixed - - 2% 24,576
Xalq Bank Fixed . - 5.5% 1,382
USD denominated
International Bank of
Azerbaljan Fixed 6% 11,098 6% 9,922
Ziraat Bank Fixed 5.5-6% 7,756 6% 9,036
Pasha Yatiim Bankas| Fixed 6.5% 6,500 6% 3,659
Drilimec S.p.A Fixed 6.5% 5711 5% 8,478
Xalq Bank Fixed 5% 4,520 5% 4,520
Pasha Bank (factoring
arrangement) Fixed 0.8% 3,075 - -
Pasha Bank Fixed 4.5% 1,574 - -
Ish Bankasl Fixed 4.5% 1,335 4.5% 7,794
Yap! Kred! Bankas} . Fixed 4% 1,300 - -
Bank of Baku Fixed 5% 225 5% 1,413
Xalq Bank Fixed - - 6% 2,663
AzerTurk Bank Fixed - - 7% 1,892
AzerTurk Bank Fixed - - 6% 1,000
AZN danominated
Pasha Bank Fixed 10.5% 15,253 10.5% 10,349
International Bank of
Azerbalfan Fixed 12% 4,600 12% 3,847
International Bank of
Azerbaljan Fixed 10.5% 4,103 -
Xalq Bank Fixed 129% 4,059 =
Pasha Bank Fixed 12% 588 - -
Xalq Bank Fixed - - 2% 1,366
TRY denominated
Yap! Kred! Bankasl Fixed 18.75% 1,020 - -
Interest payable 312 - 686
Total - 107,081 , 136,675
Long-term portion of
borrowings 11,142 , 85,978
Current portion repayable in
one year and shown under
current linblilties o 55,9389 . 80,607

In November 2015, the Group entered into a |oan agreement with Landesbank Baden-Warttemberg
for the total amount of EUR 20.2 million. The Group applied the amounts borrowed for the purchase
of one set of Bentec type offshore drilling rig. The borrowing carrles a market Interest rate which is
the aggregate of the 0.8% applicable margin and the respective 6-month EURIBOR rate and Is
repayable up to July 2023 with equal Instaliment pald every half a year. As at 31 December 2021,
the balance of loan from Landesbank Baden-Wirttemberg was USD 6.5 million or EUR 5.7 million
(2020: USD 12.3 milllon or EUR 10.1 miillon).
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On 28 December 2018, SOCAR-AQS LLC subsidiary entered Into a secured loan agreement In the
amount of EUR 25.9 million with 3.5% annual Interest rate, maturing on 28 December 2020 with
Xalq Bank. On 30 November 2020, the original maturity date of the loan has been prolonged till 28
December 2022 and Interest rate has been Increased to 4%. The principal amount of USD 27.5
mililion (EUR 24.3 million), outstanding at 31 December 2021, is fully payable on the maturity date.

At 31 December 2021, outstanding loan balance of USD 7.8 million represents the balance of USD
denominated loans obtalned by SOCAR-AQS LLC from Ziraat Bank Azerbaijan under several credit
line agreements totaling USD 9.1 million. Loans bear an annual interest rate of 5.5%-6% and
mature up to October 2023.

. During 2021, subsidiary of SOCAR-AQS LLC In Turkiye obtained loans in four tranches in the total
amount of USD 6.5 million from Pasha Yatirim Bankas! with an effective Interest rate of 6.5% p.a.
and matuning in April and July 2022.

In 2018, SOCAR-AQS LLC entered Into loan agreement with Drilimec S.p.A for purchase of Drillmec
1500 HP AC drilling rig. As per the agreement, 50% of the price of drilling rig In the amount of USD
8.3 milllon is payable In the form of quarterly annuity payments with the fixed interest rate of 5.0%
p.a. On 20 may 2021, loan agreement with Drilimec S.p.A was amended for new payment schedule
with revised fixed Interest rate of 6.5% p.a.

On 24 August 2021, SOCAR-AQS LLC entered Into credit-line loan agreement In the amount of AZN
6.9 million (USD 4.1 million) with 12% annual interest rate, maturing on 6 January 2022 with Xalq
Bank. At the year end, the balance was USD 4,059 thousand.

At 31 December 2021 drilling rigs and drilling equipment with the carrying amount of USD 73.2
million (2020: USD 62.3 million) were pledged as collateral for loans from Xalq Bank, Ziraat Bank
Azerbaljan and Bank of Baku.

At 31 December 2021, bank loans were secured by trade recelvables with s total carrying amount
of USD 11.2 million {2020: USD 3.8 milllon trade recelvables).

On 27 November 2018, Prokon LLC subsidiary entered Into secured credit line agreement In the
amount of USD 5 milllon with 6% annual Interest rate, maturing on 27 November 2019 with
International Bank of Azerbaijan. In each subsequent year, the maturity date of the loan was
prolonged for another one-year till 30 November 2022 and the credit liIne amount was increased to
USD 12 millton. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of the loan was USD 11.1 milllion. (2020:
USD 9.9 million).

On 27 November 2018, Prokon LLC entered into secured credit line agreement in the amount of
AZN 7 million (USD 4.1 mililon) with 10.5% annual Interest rate, maturing in January 2023 with
International Bank of Azerbaljan.

On 27 May 2019, Prokon LLC entered Into a credit lIne agreement with Pasha Bank [n the amount
of AZN 7.8 milllon (USD 4.6 miilion) with 9% annual interest rate, maturing on 27 May 2020. In
each subsequent year, the maturity date of the loan was prolonged for another one-year till 27 May
2022. Subsequently, the credit line limit and annual interest rate was also Increased to AZN 10
million (USD 5.9 mililion) and 10.5% p.a., respectively. On 13 May 2020, Prokon LLC entered into
a credit line agreement In the amount of AZN 17 miilion (USD 10 million) with 10.5% annual interest
rate, maturing on 10 May 2022 with Pasha Bank. On 17 August 2021, Prokon LLC entered into a
new credit line agreement in the amount of AZN 3 million (USD 1.8 million) with the annual interest
rate of 10.5% and the maturity date of 13 February 2022 with Pasha Bank. At 31 December 2021,
outstanding balances of these credit lines totaled USD 15.3 million or AZN 25.9 million.

At 31 December 2021, outstanding loan balance of USD 4.6 million represents the balance of AZN
denominated loans obtained by Global Energy Solutions LLC subsidiary from International Bank of
Azerbaljan under five credit line agreements totalling AZN 9.8 million (USD 5.8 mlllion). All loans
bear an annual interest rate of 12% and mature up to March 2024.
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Reconclllation of llabilities arlsing from financing activities

The table below details changes In the Group's llabllities arising from financing activities, Including
both cash and non-cash changes.. Llabilities arising from financing actlvities are those for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified In the Group's statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activitles.

Cash changes, $/000 . — . -Non-cash changes, $'000
" Effectof - Tt
foreign
Financing Repay- exchange
1 January cash flows ment of Interest rate Interest 31 December
2021 (1) bank loans. ipald changes _expenss .. _ 2021
Loans and
borrowings 136,675 89,956 (115,255) (7,929) (3.917) 7,551 107,081
. Cash changes,'5'000 Non-cash changes, $'000
ST - T T S Effectet T ¢ -
forelgn
Financing Repay- exchange
1Jenuary cash flows ment of Interest rate Interest 31 December
2020 _ -. (). bankloans. . _ pald _ changes. expense 2020.
Loans and
borrowings 88,259 96,074 (53,717) (7,023) 5,834 7,248 136,675

() The cash fiows from bank loans make up the total amount of proceeds from borrowings in the statement
of cash flows.

23. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Nobel Energy Limited (formerly Nobel Oll Services (UK) Limited) was incorporated on 25 June 2014
in the United Kingdom. The Company’s authorised share capital Is comprised of 3 ordinary shares
with a par value of $1 each. '

On incorporation 1 ordinary share of $1 was issued at par. Subsequently, the Group’s principal
shareholder pald In share capital of $5.2 million In exchange for 2 Issued ordinary share at $1 each.

During 2021, the Group’s principal shareholder contributed In the capital of the Group $26.1 million
by way of assignment of benefit of an outstanding debts to the Group's two subsidiaries which
previously were due to the other entities controlled by the principal shareholder and $5 mililon by
way of extinguishment of llabllities owned by the one of the Group's subsidlaries to the entity
controlled by the principal shareholder. The Group recorded these transactions directly In the share
premium account.

During 2021, $56.8 milllon dividends were distributed (2020: $15.8 mlilion dividends in specle) to
the ultimate shareholder of the Group.
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24,

25.

MERGER RESERVE
Merger Merger
reserve reserve
2021 2020
$'000 _.$'000
Balance at 1 January — _-223,406 223,406
Balance at 31 December _17,338 . 223,406

In accordance with section 610 of the Companies Act 2006 the difference between the nominal
value of equity Instruments Issued (1 ordinary share of $1) and the carrying amount of entities
contributed to the share capital of the Company has been credited to the merger reserve.

RESTRICTED CASH

Other assets malnly represent restricted cash balance. As at 31 December 2021, the non-current
portion of restricted cash balance Is USD 36,659 thousand (2020: USD 36,679 thousand) and the
current portion of restricted cash balance is USD 34 thousand (2020: USD 4,765 thousand).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Capital management

The Group manages Its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the retumn to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt or equity balance.

Total debt excluding shareholder loans to total asset ratio for the year ended 2021 Is 17.7% (2020:
21.1%).

The capltal structure of the Group Is comprised of equity, shareholder loans and fixed rate loans
with banks.

Categories of financial Instruments

The financial assets of the Group are classifled Into the “loans and receivables” category.
The dassification depends on the nature and purpose of the financlal assets and Is determined
at the time of Initial recognition.

Loans and recelvables are non-derivative financlal assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted In an active market. Financlal assets are represented by loans to related parties,
trade and other receivables, bank balances and deposits with maturity dates less than three
months. All financlal instruments held by the Group are recorded at amortised cost.

The financial llabllitles of the Group are classifled as ‘other financlal liabilities’. Other financial
llabliities (Including borrowings and trade and other payables) are initially recognized at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequently they are measured at amortised cost using the effective
Interest method. The Group‘s principal financial liabllities comprise shareholder loans, fixed rate
loans with banks and trade and other payables.
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s finandal instruments as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
as follows, which are assumed to approximate thelr fair values:

31 December 31 Decamber
2021 2020
Note £'000 ... 5'000
Financial assets measured at amortived cost
Recelvables from related parties 28 58,522 64,209
Trade and other recelvables 15 125,857 207,338
Finance lease recelvables 17 1,115 1,525
Restricted cash 25 36,659 41,444
Cash and cash equivalents 19 - . 67.580 52,716

Total financial assets . 289“'_743 = 367,232

Financinl liabliities measured at amortized cost

Loans with banks 22 107,081 136,675
Shareholder loans 28 51,114 51,106
Lease liabliltles 13 5,983 4,881
Trade and other payables (exc. Contract liabllities) 20 . 116,665 . 141,446.
Total financial liabliities 280,843 334,108

&= s

The carrylng amounts of the Company’s financial Instruments as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
are as follows, which are assumed to approximate their fair values:

31 December 31 Dscember
2021 2020
= 37000 -$7000 -
Financlal assets measured atamoﬂbad‘ cost
Recelvables from related parties 40 40
Cash and cash equivalents i 1,504, ... 2,763
Total financlal assets - ] 1;544,‘ ‘ “2;803
Financial llablilities measured at amortized cost
Trade and other payables {exc. Contract liabliities) B 129 203 .
Total financial lisbliities o120 _293

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial Instruments are credit, liquldity and currency
risks,

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting In
financlal loss to the Group. Financlal assets which are potentlally subject to concentration of credit
risk consist principally of loans to related parties, trade and other recelvables and cash and cash
equivalents reduced by the amount of petty cash.

A significant proportion of Group’s operations are with the State Oll Company of Azerbaljan Republic
and its affiliated entitles ("SOCAR") and as such the Group has significant concentrations of credit
risk with SOCAR. The Group’s management reviews aging analysis of outstanding trade receivables
with SOCAR and follows up on past due balances. The amount and timing of payments by SOCAR
largely depends on macroeconomic factors Including oll prices and avallabllity of liquid funds.
Therefore, management control Is limited over collecting overdue trade recelvables.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

31 Decembar 31 December

..2021 _2020

Note _ = '$'000 - ‘5’000

Recelvables from related parties 28 58,522 64,209
Trade and other recelvables 15 125,857 207,338
Contract assets 15 36,717 20,512
Finance lease recelvables 17 1,115 1,525
Restricted cash 25 36,659 41,444
Cash and cash equivalents 19 = . _62,5%0-. - 52,716.
Total 326,460 387,744

The Group has recognised expected credit losses of USD 4,654 thousand (2020: USD 11,971
thousand) with respect to Its recelvables due from related parties, trade and other recelvables and
current bank accounts and management belleves that there Is no further impalrment of receivables
from related partles, trade and other recelvables and current bank accounts.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibllity for liquidity risk management rests with the directors, which have
established an appropriate  liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group‘’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintalning adequate reserves, banking facllities and reserve
borrowing facllities, by continuouslty monhoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabllities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for Its non-derivative
financial liabllitles with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabllittes based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The tables include both Interest and principal cash flows. The und!scounted
amount s derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting year. The contractual
maturity Is based on the earllest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

Contiractu

Carrying al cash Lass than 6-12 Ovar
amount flows G6months months 1-5years 5 years
31 December 2021 $'000.. '$'000.___'$'000 000 .  $°000. 5’000~
Non-derivative financlal
Ilablllties
Loans with banks 107,081 112,396 37,416 53,768 21,212 -
Lease liabllitles 5,983 7,391 1,064 1,138 5,189 -
Shareholder ivans 51,114 51,114 51,114 - - -
Trade and other payables :
(exc. Contract liabtlities) 116,665 _ 116,665 116,665 - - -
Total non-derivative financial
Ilabliities .. 280843 287.566. 206,259 54,906  26,401.. -
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Contractu
Carrylng al cash Less than 6-12 Qver
amount fiows 6months months 1-Byears 65 years
31 December 2020 - .-$'000  —  $°000 ~$'000 _:$000 5'000 's'ooo
Non-derivative financial
liabllities
Loans with banks 136,675 142,204 42,575 40,812 58,817 -
Lease llabllities 4,881 5,680 1,000 1,100 3,580
Shareholder loans 51,106 51,106 51,106 - - :
Trade and other payables
(exc. Contract liabliities) - 141,446 _ 135446 . 141,446. .. - .- - e e
Total non-derivative financial
llabliities 334,108 340,436 . 236,127.- 41,912 62,397 - ——

Currancy risk

The Group Is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are denominated In
currencles other than AZN. The currendes In which these transactions primarily are denominated
are Euros (EUR) and US Dollars (USD).

The control over foreign currency risk arising from trading operations Is managed In the following
ways:

®  Monitoring of Interconnection between forelgn currency posntion level for each currency and
the relevant liquidity level for these currencles;

[ Forecasting the tendencles of volatility in the rates of foreign currencles, especially EUR and
USD;

e  Analysis of activity and the Group operations with large customers and suppliers Involved in
export-import operations.

Exposure to currency risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:
31 December 2021 .=—- __ 31 December 2020 _
EUR UsDh h EUR - = -USD-
denominated denominated denominated denominated
v___- 3000 $'000 _ i$7000 ©$7000_
Recelvables from related parties 240 58,282 232 63,977
Trade and other
recelvables/contract assets 5,199 92,476 5,621 140,007
Restricted cash . - 36,659 - 41,427
. Cash and cash equivalents 973 16,028 458 15,304
Loans with banks (34,052) (43,406) (70,050) (51,063)
Shareholder loans ST, (51,114) ) - (51,106)
Trade and other payables . ALT71) t56 930): 11,832, _:{48,1 1841'
Net exposure . {20,411) ~51,995..  (65571) - . 110,362

The following exchange rates applied at year end:
- 51 Deacamber 31 December

2021 2030,
AZN / 1 USD 1.7000 1.7000
AZN / 1 EUR ' 1.9265 _ 2.0890
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27.

Sensitivity analysis

A weakening of the AZN, as Indicated below, against the following currencles at 31 December 2021
and 2020 would have decreased equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
Is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Group considered to be reasonably
possible at the end of the reporting year. The analysls assumes that all other variables, In particular
Interest rates, remain constant.

Impact on:profitorioss . _ ..

2021 2020

s§'ooo - §'mo

AZN / EUR 10% weakening (2020: 10% weakening) (2,941) (6,557)
AZN / USD 10% weakening (2020: 10% weakening) 5200 . 11,036

A strengthening of the AZN agalnst the above currencies would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above currencles to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remaln constant.

CONTINGENCIES

Business environment

The Group conducts most of Its operations In the Republic of Azerbaljan. The Republic of Azerbaljan
displays certain characteristics of an emerging market. Current and future growth and stabillity of
the economy Is largely dependent upon the effective Implementation of economic, fiscal and
monetary measures undertaken by govemment as well as crude oll prices and stabllity of
Azerbaljani Manats.

The economy of Azerbaijan Is particularly sensitive to oll and gas prices. During recent years, the
Azerbaljanl Government continued major economic and social reforms to accelerate transition to a2
more balanced economy and reduce dependence on the oil and gas sector.

During 2021 the oll prices reached 7-year maximum which created significant surplus in the
country’s current account and Increased forelgn currency reserves. The Central Bank of Azerbaijan
maintalned stability of the Azerbaijani manat, which was kept flat at 1.7000 for 1 USD throughout
2020 and 2021. The refinancing rate was reduced from 7.25 per cent to 6.25 per cent during 2020
and returmed to 7.25 per cent as at 31 December 2021, to address Increased Inflation worldwide.

International credit rating agencies regularly evaluate credit rating of the Azerbaljan Republic. Fitch
evaluated rating of the country as *BB+", whiist Moody’s Investors Service set “Bal” credit rating
for Azerbaljan.

During 2020, the global economy was negatively impacted by the spread of the coronavirus
pandemic (COVID-19). This Included increasingly restrictive lockdown measures to combat COVID-
19 In many countries, significantly reduced economic activity and aggregate spending levels. Soclal
distancing and quarantine measures resuited in the closure of retail, transport, travel, catering,
hotel, entertainment and many other businesses. International trade was also significantly reduced.
Finally, oll prices tumbled to historic lows. In response to these challenges, countries where the
Group operates, Introduced large economic and fiscal programs, including, but not limited to,
subsidized lending to affected Industries, payments to unemployed Individuals, tax deferrals and
easing of certaln regulatory restrictions to support the financial sector. With the start of vaccination
In 2021 the countries gradually started to eliminate quarantine regime measures, travel restrictions,
closure of business and other venues.

The ongoing effects of the political and economic situation are difficult to predict, but they may
have further effects on the economy of Azerbaljan, which may lead to a deterioration of the State
finances, volatliity of financlal markets, lliiquidity on capital markets, higher Inflation and a
deprediation of the national currency against major foreign currencies.
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Legal proceedings

From time to time and In the normal course of business, claims against the Group are recelved from
counterparties. Management Is of the opinion that no material un-accrued losses will be incurred
and accordingly no provision has been made In these consolldated financial statements.

Taxatlion

Azerbaljan tax, currency and customs legislation which was enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting year, Is subject to varylng Interpretations when being applied to the
transactions and actlvities of the Group. Consequently, tax positions taken by management and
the formal documentation supporting the tax positions may be challenged by tax authoritles.
Azerbaljan tax administration Is gradually strengthening, Including the fact that there Is a higher
‘sk of review of tax transactions without a clear business purpose or with tax incompilant
counterparties. Fiscal periods remaln open to review by the authorities In respect of taxes for three
calendar years preceding the year when decision about review was made. Under certain
circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

During the year 2021, SOCAR-AQS LLC subsidiary purchased consulting services from another
Group s subsidlary, N-Oll Management CJSC, In the amount of USD 5.4 miilion (2020: USD 26.7
million) and declared ali costs as deductible expense in Its profit tax declaration.

The management believes that Its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and the
Group’s tax, currency end customs positions will be sustained. Accordingly, as of 31 December
2020, no provision for potential tax llabllities arising from these transactions had been recorded.

However, the interpretations of the relevant authoritles could differ and if the authorities were

successful In enforcing their Interpretations the maximum tax exposure can be equal to the amount
of USD 2,6 million (2020: USD 16,9 mlilion).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and Its subsidiaries, which are related parties, are
disclosed below: ~

31 Dce_nlnlnr 2021 3’000 __31 Decamber 2020$'000

Total category ~ ~ Total category
as per the as per the
consolldated consolidated
financial financial
Relatad party statements  Related party statemants
. balances _ -caption .. _ _ balances . caption.
Long-term recelvables from
related parties
- entitles under common control of
ultimate business owner and out
with Group 40 40 40 40

Transactions between the Group and Its joint ventures and other related parties are arm ‘s length
and are disclosed below:

- 31 December 2021 $’000 31 December 2020: s'ooo 3
= = - Total category™ " i = Total category
*~. as per the as per the
congolldated consolidated
financial financial
Related party statements  Related party statements
baiances caption balances . caption
Recelvables from related parties 58,522 64,209
- entities under common control of
ultimate business owner and out
with Group 58,522 64,009
- Joint ventures of the Group - 200
Trade and other recelvables 175,472 219,553
- enbities under common control of
ultimate business owner and out
with Group 6,069 6,003
- joint ventures of the Group 1,477 263
Contract asgets 36,717 20,512

- entities under common control of
ultimate business owner and out
with Group 3,007 2,661

Shareholders’ loans
- entities under common control of
ultimate business owner end out
with Group 51,114

51,114 51,106

51,106

Advances given and pnpald

axpenses 33,440 33,810

= entities under common control of

uitimate business owner and out :
with Group 6,328 3,342

Trade and other payables

- entitles under common control of
ultimate business owner and out
with Group 2,353 7,730

- Joint ventures of the Group - 2

157,892 168,460

Distribution of dividends to
shareholder 56,827 15,840
- ultimate owner of the Group 56,827 15,840
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Recelvables from related parties mainly represent financing provided by the Group’s Nobei Oli Ltd
subslidiary to related parties. These amounts bear no Interest.

Shareholders’ loans are repayable on demand and bear no Interest.

Capital contribution represents the extingulshment of liabllities in the amount of USD 15.8 million
to an entity controlled by the ultimate shareholder of the Group. Owing to the nature of the
transaction, the Group recorded this transaction as capital contribution directly In the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

On 23 December 2020, the Company declared dlvidends via a dividend In specle In the amount of
USD 15.8 milllon by way of assignment of the benefit of an outstanding debt due to the Group by
another entity controlled by the uitimate shareholder of the Group.

31 December 2021 £000 31 December 202057000
] Total category - T 7 Total category
as per the as per the
consolidated consojidated
financial . financlal
Related party statements Related party statements
transactions . _caption ._transactions... captlon
Provision of services : 39,707 24,522
- entities under cormmon control of
ultimate business owner and out . ;-
with Group ) 9,285 840
- joint ventures of the Group 144 441
Construction contract revenue - 177,108 223,400
- entities under common controf of - .
uftimate business owner and out ..
with Group : 9,396 7,799
- foint ventures of the Group - 520
Sale of goods 20,410 23,310
- entittes under common control of
ultimate business owner and out )
with Group 49 13
- Joint ventures of the Group 136 33
Construction contract costs 136,413 181,421
- entitles under common control of
ultimate business owner and out
with Group 4,640 2,014
Impalrment loss on recelvables (7.,088) 3,119
from related parties
- entities under common control of. 2,699 341
ultimate business owner and out
with Group

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors and key management personnel of the group is set out below

In aggregate.
2021 2020
+$7000 ssgopo ‘
Directors’ emolumaents and key management personnal
compensation:
- short-term employee benefits 2,206 1,533
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Capital reorganization

In June 2022, as part of higher leve! group restructuring, all of the shares of Nobel Energy Limited
(formerly Nobel Oil Services (UK) Limited) together with the shares of other entities directly owned
by the ultimate shareholder of the Group were transferred to Invigliob Capital B.V - the Netheriands
based holding company. Subsequently, Inviglob Capital B.V was renamed to NEQSOL Hoiding B.V.

New loans obtalned and foan repayments

Subsequent to reporting date, the Group obtained long-term and short-term loans In the amount
of USD 96.1 million from banks,

Subsequent to reporting period, the Group repald Its outstanding loans in the amount of USD 73.6
million to several foreign and local banks.

Dividends declared

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group dedlared and subsequently paid dividends to the
uitimate shareholder In the amount of USD 18.2 milllion.

Impact of sanctions from Russla - Ukraine conflict

Since February 2022, numerous sanctions have been announced by majority of westem countries
against the Russlan Federation, due to the conflict between the Russian Federation and Ukraine.
These sanctions are expected to have certain negative economic Impact on the Russian Federation.
As of the date of these financlal statements, the Group had a subsidiary in the Russlan Federation
however its total exposure to Russlan financial markets was not material. At 31 December 2021,
total assets and total liabilitles of the subsidiary amounted USD 262 thousand and USD 732
thousand, respectively. The llabllities mainly comprised trade payables and shareholder loans. In
August 2022, the Group sold all shares In subsidiary for a conslderation of USD 5 thousand.

The Group's management Is thoroughly monitoring the economic situation In the current
environment and taking precautionary measures in order to manage associated risks.

66




